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Financial Highlights
MERE

Revenue was approximately RMB785.6 million,
representing an increase of approximately 18.4% over

last year.

Profit attributable to owners of the parent was
approximately RMB116.4 million, representing an
increase of approximately 9.1% over last year.

Basic earnings per share amounted to RMBO0.21,
representing a decrease of approximately 25.0% over
last year.

The Board proposed to declare a final dividend of
RMBO0.022 per share for the year ended 31 December
2014, which will be subject to shareholders’ approval
at the annual general meeting. This represented a total
distribution of RMB17.6 million for the year ended
31 December 2014 (without taking into account the
shares of the Company that may be issued pursuant to
the exercise of the over-allotment option granted by the

Company).
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Chairman’s Statement

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of
Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited (“Suchuang Gas” or the
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries collectively refer
as the “Group”), | am pleased to present to you the annual
results for the year ended 31 December 2014 (the “Year”) of
Suchuang Gas.

Market Review and Business Review

2014 was an encouraging though a challenging year to
Suchuang Gas. With the slow global economic recovery,
the weak domestic macroeconomic growth, and those
strengthening macroeconomic control measures by the
Central government, in particular its enlarged controls
over the real estate market, China experienced a further
slowdown in its GDP growth at 7.4% in 2014. However,
given that the increasing awareness towards environmental
protection issues of, and thoroughly implementation of
energy reforms in China by the Central government, which
has encouraged the consumption of natural gas, the natural
gas industry where the Group is laying, has still maintained
a good growing momentum. Furthermore, leveraging with
the unremitting efforts contributed by the entire Group,
its leading market position in Taicang City, its outstanding
management team, as well as those favourable and
supporting policies, Suchuang Gas achieved a sound and
steady growth with a new record high against the backdrop
of stable economic growth in China last year.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEWE

With the good track records of Suchuang Gas, the bright
prospects of the natural gas market and the capability of
the Group to expand its business, the Group gained social
recognition and support extensively in the [PO market. The
Group was successfully listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 11 March 2015, with net proceeds of
HK$358.4 million (without taking into account the shares
of the Company that may be issued pursuant to the exercise
of the over-allotment option granted by the Company and
after deducting underwriting fees and estimated expenses in
connection with the global offering of the Company). This
not only marked a new level in the international capital
market for the Group but also brought greater momentum
and confidence for Suchuang Gas in respects of its future
long-term development.

In review of 2014, given that air pollution in China has
been worsening, and the impacts of hazy weather have
further widened, the Central and local governments have
subsequently launched related policies to optimise the
energy structure, including “Coal to Gas” in the industrial
sector, “Oil to Gas” in the transportation sector, as well as
natural gas distributed energy etc.. In April 2014, according
to the NDRC's Opinions regarding Steady Supply of Natural
Gas KR EYRERARBEHBEARIINE T
5)), China’s natural gas supply capacity will reach 400
billion m* by 2020, and is striving to achieve 420 billion
m?. It is expected that the demand for natural gas in China
will rapidly increase along with economic development,
population growth, industrialisation and the urbanisation
process. Benefited from the industrial development planning
guided by favourable policies and the steady growth in
market demand, the profit attributable to the owners of the
Parent as recorded by the Group during the Year steadily
increased by 9.1% from approximately RMB106.7 million
in 2013 to approximately RMB116.4 million in 2014.
Moreover, the operating cash inflow as recorded by the
Group during the Year was RMB232.1 million and the
gearing ratio (total borrowing/total assets) was approximately
12.4%.
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During the Year, the Group gradually expanded its sale
and transmission of natural gas business in Taicang City.
Meanwhile, the Group’s purchase price of stock natural gas
for non-residential usage was adjusted by PetroChina from
RMB2.42/m* to RMB2.82/m? effective from 1 September
2014 and the Company’s maximum selling price for
non-residential usage and other (public utilities) usage,
including stock natural gas and incremental natural gas,
in Taicang City was adjusted upward by RMBO0.33/m? by
Taicang Price Bureau effective from 20 October 2014. On
30 December 2014, upon the approval of the Jiangsu Price
Bureau, Taicang Price Bureau announced that the base
selling price of residential usage natural gas in Taicang City
shall be adjusted upward by RMB0.25/m* and a ladder gas
pricing system shall be implemented. The adjustment has
taken effect from 1 January 2015. The management of the
Company believed that the price adjustment will have a
positive impact on the future business development of the
Group.

To seize significant growth opportunities of natural gas
industry, we will continue to consolidate and enhance the
sale and transmission of piped natural gas business of the
Group in Taicang City, and strategically expand into CNG
and LNG refuelling stations business. In addition, the Group
has also intended to extend its business coverage into other
cities through acquiring controlling interests in other natural
gas operators, so as to improve the operational efficiency of
the Company, to enlarge the effects of economies of scale,
as well as to enhance the profitability of the Company.
With the extensive operation experience in the natural
gas industry of Suchuang Gas, the Group is confident of
maintaining the long-term stable development of its business
and further strengthening its leading position in the industry,
which in turn creating enormous returns for Shareholders.

Chairman’s Statement
FREWE

FA - AEEBSHAREERETHRAR
SHEME R - SRR - PABEBEE
FERAGERNEBEERT LA RKARK
2T EREBILHRARKE2.827T - BE
FARE2014F981HBHNT MARTY
ERAERARAGTRARTRIEERARKE
t(AEEE) AR (PEFEAKEER)
WEmEEBELT K EFAARKIIT
ERFAZEE B82014F108208 B#H 1T - B
2014F12A308 © L) I&HEWERRE -
REMYEREMARMERARARHEE
BEEEREELHF K LEFAARY.25T - I
HTERAXARBBAREEE - ZXA
REBABRFRNMZ B2015F1A1HBH
T - AR ERERAEHNERARKA
AEERRREFERFREDAER -

RIEERARRITENERIEREE - HAE
MBZRENRAAEEEARTHEERXR
RRIHE LA KR - WBRS R X
ERBRARLBICRARIMRIEET © 1t
Sh - REBE T EEBRBEMRARES
FEEERED  EXBHERREE N
W NERARNARMEENE - BEEK
HMREREMIRS B MEE S < BEFHAIRR
ERARITEBRENEEEL LR A&H
BRELEFBEGRURERE  E—FPEE
TTRBLMA - BRREEEA@HR -

2014 FER | HEARERHER AT

7



Chairman’s Statement
FEWE

Prospects

The global economy is still facing many uncertainties
and there are also severe challenges associated with the
economic growth in China. However, under the continued
support by the Central government, the natural gas market
of China will grow in a more steady and healthy way.
Furthermore, the Central government reiterated in last year
that it would expedite “new urbanization” progress. This
is expected to drive a continued increase in population in
second and third tier cities, creating greater opportunities

for natural gas markets in these cities.

Being a leading energy consumption country, China’s major
source of energy is coal. The development of natural gas
will serve as an alternative for China as it moves towards
clean energy consumption. The Chinese government has
set the target to increase the proportion of gas consumption
from 4% in 2012 to 8% by 2015, and further increase it
to 10% by 2020. In 2014, China issued a new series of
policies and regulations on natural gas, for example the
Regulatory Measures (Trial) for Fair and Open Access to Oil
and Gas Pipeline Infrastructure Business ((HREMEFZEA
FHAME B PA(17))), Administrative Measures for the
Construction and Operation of Gas Pipeline Infrastructure
(KRAREWRBERNESEEPMIE)) and Strengthen
Air Pollution Control in Energy Industry Program of Work
(CRETRTT R MNB R RIS AR A TIET E)) etc., which will
continue to have profound influence on the development of
the natural gas industry in the future.

Meanwhile, according to a notice dated 26 February 2015
issued by the NDRC, the maximum gateway station price
of incremental natural gas for non-residential usage of
all provinces shall decrease by RMB0.44/m°, while the
maximum gateway station price of stock natural gas for non-
residential usage shall increase by RMB0.04/m? effective
from 1 April 2015, in order to synchronize the gateway
station price of stock natural gas and incremental natural
gas.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited. | Annual Report 2014
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Looking forward, the Group believes that the continued
reforms of China’s energy structure and the growing
vehicular natural gas market will bring along opportunities
for long-term stable development in China’s natural gas
industry. With the progressing “new urbanization”, the
increasing awareness towards environmental protection
of citizens, as well as the favourable policies to stimulate
natural gas consumptions, Suchuang Gas will actively seek
those merging and acquiring opportunities to be beneficial
to the business development of the Group through its
experienced professional management team, its sound and
healthy business models and its excellent branding, so as to
capture business opportunities arising from the increasing
demand for natural gas in China's urban areas, thus
achieving the sustainable and steady growth of it business.

Acknowledgement

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my gratitude
to our Shareholders and partners for their trust in and
support for the Group and would also like to extend my
heartfelt gratitude to the Board, the management and all
employees for their hard work and contributions over the
past year. In 2015, we will continue to work hard and do
our best to achieve better results so as to generate higher

returns for our Shareholders.

Su Aping
Chairman
Hong Kong, 27 March 2015
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

ESEkEREEEERE

DIRECTORS

Our Board currently consists of seven Directors, comprising

=

BPME=TEREHERESAN - 8=
HARTEF  —RFRTEFR=RBIF
HITES - TRIBARARREFTRAF

three executive Directors, one non-executive Director and

10

three independent non-executive Directors. The following
table sets out certain information about our Directors as at

the date of this annual report:

HERNBEOER

Roles and responsibilities

B REE

Date of
Appointment as
Director

EZIRESNES

Name Age
e Fie
Executive Directors

HITES

Mr. Su Aping (Chairman) 66

BB EAE (XFF)

Ms. Zhu Yaying 68

ENCHE S g

Mr. Du Shaozhou 62
HEBRE S E
Non-executive Director

FHITES
Mr. Xu Lei 46

APERSTAE

Independent Non-executive Directors
BYFIITES

Mr. Zhou Qingzu 82
FEBEEE

Mr. He Junjie 58
&Gkt

Mr. Luk Wai Keung 50

PEBIREA

Overall strategic planning and business
direction and overseeing the overall
execution of the Group’s strategy

ERERETEREBTRAAREEAREH
REEMERAITER

Implementation and monitoring of
the Group’s strategic plans and inter-
departmental coordination within
our Group
ETRERARENRE I MAKE
P55 P 169 38

Managing the day-to-day operations of the

Group
BEAREENEFEE

Performing roles as a non-executive
Director

BITIEMITE SR

Performing roles as an independent
non-executive Director

[BITE IFITE F AR

Performing roles as an independent
non-executive Director

[BITESIFITE RN R

Performing roles as an independent
non-executive Director

[BITESIFITE RN R
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Executive Directors

Mr. Su Aping (B[ %), aged 66, was appointed as a Director
on 26 February 2014 and was re-designated as the chairman
and an executive Director on 12 September 2014 and is
responsible for the overall strategic planning and business
direction of the Group and overseeing the overall execution
of the Group’s strategy. Mr. Su has approximately 30 years of
experience in the management of gas enterprises. Mr. Su has
been the director and general manager of Taicang Natural
Gas Co., Ltd. (“Taicang Natural Gas”) since its incorporation
in May 2002, responsible for its business development
and operation, strategic planning and investment. Mr. Su
has been the chairman and general manager of Suzhou
Suchuang Industrial Group Company (8% /N T & &I E ¥ & E A
A]) (now known as Suzhou City Suchuang Group Company
Limited (“Suchuang Group”)) since its incorporation in 1992
and is responsible for its overall management and business
development. From 1984 to 1992, Mr. Su worked at Taicang
Enterprise Liquified Gas Institute (KB ZERILRFT) under
Taicang Fabric Factory (KEE) (later renamed as Taicang
County Liquified Gas Company (K& & &{LR A F]), Taicang
County Gas Company (KEHHERZAF]) and Taicang City
Gas Company (KETHERAA]) and held various positions
including manager and legal representative, responsible for
sales and development of business and overall management.

Mr. Su is also the chairman and legal representative of each
of Suzhou PetroChina Kunlun Suchuang Gas Company
Limited (“Kunlun Suchuang Gas”) and Suzhou PetroChina
Kunlun Suchuang Natural Gas Usage Company Limited.

Profile of Directors and Senior Management
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EENSNEEBREE

Ms. Zhu Yaying (4REE3K), aged 68, was appointed as a Director
on 4 July 2013 and was redesignated as an executive
Director on 12 September 2014. In addition to assisting the
Board and our chairman to formulate the Group’s strategic
plans, Ms. Zhu is also responsible for the implementation
and monitoring of those plans as well as inter-departmental
coordination within the Group. Ms. Zhu has over 20 years of
experience in the management of gas enterprises. Ms. Zhu
joined Taicang Natural Gas since its incorporation in May
2002 where she was appointed as a director since December
2004, responsible for managing the financial resources
of the Company. Ms. Zhu joined Suzhou City Suchuang
Industrial Group Company (B /NT#FEIEXEE R E]) (now
known as Suchuang Group) as deputy general manager on
its incorporation in December 1992, responsible for the
financial operations and human resources management.
Prior to joining Suchuang Group, Ms. Zhu was the head of
the labour department of Taicang County Gas Company (A
BBHER AT (later renamed as Taicang City Gas Company
(RETHERAF) from March 1988 to December 1992,
responsible for supervising and managing human resources.

Ms. Zhu is a director of Kunlun Suchuang Gas.

Mr. Du Shaozhou (%48 /8), aged 62, is the general manager
of the Company and was appointed as an executive Director
on 12 September 2014. Mr. Du is responsible for managing
the day-to-day operations of the Group. He has over 45
years of experience in the oil and gas industry. Mr. Du has
been a director of Taicang Natural Gas since 12 February
2015, responsible for the management of its operation.
From September 2008 to August 2012, Mr. Du served at
PetroChina Kunlun Natural Gas Usage Company Limited
(P AHEmRARMNABRZQE]) as deputy general manager,
deputy secretary to the Communist Party Committee,
secretary to the Disciplinary Committee and chairman of
the labour union. From April 1995 to September 2008, Mr.
Du held various senior positions in Shenzhen Petroleum
Industrial Co., Ltd. (CRYIEHEZEBRARE) such as deputy
general manager, deputy secretary to the Communist Party

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited. | Annual Report 2014
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Committee, secretary to the Disciplinary Committee and
chairman of the labour union. From June 1978 to April 1995,
he worked at the Ministry of Petroleum Industry of the PRC
(P EGHITEE)

Company and China National Petroleum Corporation) where

(later known as China National Petroleum

he held various positions including secretary and secretary
(BB AR E).
1975 to June 1978, Mr. Du worked at the Locomotive Team
of Daqing Oilfield Construction Headquarter (X B ji H
R IEIE S B B ). From October 1969 to December
1975, Mr. Du worked at the Liaohe Oilfield Geophysical
GEAMEYIRER). Mr. Du obtained a diploma
in Public Administration from Staff University of Continuing

(deputy division chief level) From December

Exploration

Education of the Party School of the Central Committee of
the CPC (P HARERB T EE KAL) in the PRC in July
1990.

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Xu Lei (5F%), aged 46, was appointed as a Director on
27 February 2014 and was re-designated as a non-executive
Director on 12 September 2014. He has over 11 years of
experience in investment and business advisory in the PRC.
Mr. Xu joined Prax Capital Equity Management Co., Ltd.
(B EREEIR(L/B)ARAF) in August 2003 and is
currently a managing partner of Prax Capital, responsible for
leading and conducting the fund’s investment activities in
the PRC.

Mr. Xu obtained a Master of Business Administration from
the Wharton School of the University of Pennsylvania in
the United States in May 2001 and a Bachelor of Law from
Ningbo University in the PRC in July 1991.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Zhou Qingzu (AEE#), aged 82, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 16 February 2015.
He has over 60 years of experience in the oil and gas
industry. From October 1996 to October 2000, Mr. Zhou
was a member of the Senior Technical Council of Economic
Advisers (@AM ERERZE®) at China Petroleum and
Petrochemical Engineering Institute (B A EF A ITE
).

the Advisory Committee (25XZ& B€) of China International
Engineering Consulting Corporation (FEIEE TRZHAA
a)). From 1988 to 1993, Mr. Zhou worked at China National
Petroleum Company (F BIAHRARLLAF]) (now known as

China National Petroleum Corporation) as chief economist.

From July 1994 to July 1997, he was a member of

Prior to joining China National Petroleum Corporation,
Mr. Zhou was the head of the planning department of the
Ministry of Petroleum Industry of the PRC from 1979 to
1987. From 1954 to 1979, Mr. Zhou held multiple positions
within Xinjiang Petroleum Administration Bureau (#7588
EI2/D), including chief economist and head of the planning
division and deputy head of Xinjiang Petroleum Bureau,
head of the planning division of Karamay Mining Bureau
(R AFBKTET /D), and head of Urumgi Petrochemical Plant
(BEBARBA(ERE). From 1952 to 1954, Mr. Zhou worked at
Shanxi Yanchang Oil Field (BRPEFERIEHE) as an accounting

clerk and secretary.

Mr. Zhou obtained a bachelor’s degree in financial
management from Shanghai Institute of Finance and
Economics (now known as Shanghai University of Finance
and Economics) in the PRC in August 1952 and was awarded
professor-level senior economist in September 1989 by
China National Petroleum Company.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited. | Annual Report 2014
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Mr. He Junjie (fil ¥ #%), aged 58, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 16 February 2015.
Mr. He has over 35 years of experience in enterprise
management and 5 years of work experience in the PRC
legal system. From June 2010 to June 2013, Mr. He was the
executive director of Lanzhou City Ganglian Environmental
Development Co., Ltd. (/T BB ARLRREERERAE).
He served as a juror in the People’s Court in Luohu District,
Shenzhen, the PRC from March 2005 to April 2010. From
January 1995 to January 1997, Mr. He worked at Shenpu
Co., Ltd. (& A 7)), an affiliate company of Shenzhen
Material Group Company (AT EELE A7) (“Shenzhen
Material”), as general manager. From January 1993 to
January 1995, Mr. He was the deputy general manager of
Zibo Shengfei Chemical Construction Materials Co., Ltd.
CEBBRICBEMERAT),
Shenzhen Material. From December 1972 to July 1986,
Mr. He held various positions at Ningbo City Petroleum
Valves Factory (X AMEPIH) including chief officer,
responsible for quality management.

a joint venture company of

Mr. He obtained a diploma in industrial enterprise
management (LE B EE) from Zhejiang Radio & Television
University (M LEEBEIRAZ) in the PRC in July 1986 and
was awarded the qualification of an assistant economist in
December 1988 by Ningbo City Personnel Bureau (2% A
%£/3) (now known as Ningbo Municipal Human Resources
and Social Security Bureau (ZE M ANERMT ERE
f@)). Mr. He also obtained the Luohu District Outstanding
Volunteer (Z#[EEF L) award in December 2006.
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Mr. Luk Wai Keung (F£{23&), aged 50, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 16 February
2015. Mr. Luk has over 18 years of working experience
in the accounting and finance area. Mr. Luk has been the
chief financial officer of Fu Shou Yuan International Group
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 1448), since November 2013.
Mr. Luk was the chief financial officer of Larry Jewelry
International Company Limited, a company listed on Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 8351)
from July 2011 to October 2013, responsible for its overall
financial control and management. From August 2007 to
November 2010, Mr. Luk worked at SHV (China) Investment
Company Limited, where he held a number of senior
positions, including vice president, in finance, internal
audit and business development. From May 2006 to June
2007, he served as the chief financial officer of Synergis
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 2340), responsible
for its overall finance, accounting and other corporate
functions. From January 1996 to January 2006, he worked at
PricewaterhouseCoopers in the corporate finance area.

Mr. Luk graduated from the University of Hong Kong with
a Bachelor of Science in Engineering in Hong Kong in
November 1986 and obtained a Master Degree in Business
Administration from the Australian Graduate School of
Management of the University of New South Wales in
Australia in May 1994. He has been a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since January
2014 and, a Chartered Financial Analyst at the Association
for Investment Management and Research since September
1999.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited. | Annual Report 2014
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The following table sets out certain information about our

Profile of Directors and Senior Management
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senior management personnel as at the date of this annual  HIMJELDE X} :

report:

Name Age Current Position Year Joined

e Fik BATRL HNERF 17

Mr. Xu Xihua 59 Deputy general manager of 2002
Taicang Natural Gas

RBELE RERARBIBLIE

Mr. Yuan Qing 40 Deputy general manager of 2004
Taicang Natural Gas

RAEKE REXARE @IIT

Mr. Lian Guangyou 63 Chief engineer of Taicang 2002
Natural Gas

BERTE RERAREIIZAD

Ms. Huang Hui 46 Chief financial officer of 2010
Taicang Natural Gas

mERE AKBEAARRY B BE

Mr. Ng Chi Kit 41 Chief financial officer and 2013
company secretary of
the Company

REGETE ARBMEREFRATWE

Mr. Zhou Jihui 52 Deputy general manager of 2014
the Company

[EHEEE RRAERIBRE
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Senior Management

Mr. Xu Xihua (##%), aged 59, joined the Group in May
2002 and is a deputy general manager of Taicang Natural
Gas, responsible for sales and marketing of our Group.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Xu gained experience in
operational management of natural gas enterprise from his
employment at Taicang Suchuang Pipeline Liquified Gas
Engineering Company Limited (K& & 8| & BRI T L2
BRQA),

to April 2002, responsible for the overall management of

where he was a manager from January 1999

operations, safety, infrastructures and the supply of piped
liquified gas. From August 1992 to October 1997, Mr. Xu
was the chief officer of the enterprise safety division and
the infrastructures division (2R X ZEEF K) of Suzhou
Suchuang Industrial Group Company (& /I 71 & B B % &
B~ 7)) (now known as Suchuang Group), where he was
responsible for the internal management and security,
infrastructure and property maintenance of the company. Mr.
Xu was employed as a telecommunications worker and later
promoted to the foreman at Lanzhou Railway Bureau from
December 1972 to December 1986.

Mr. Xu graduated from the Correspondence Institute
Affiliated to the Party School of the Central Committee of
the CPC (F H P RER R X EEY) in the PRC through its
distance learning programme in June 1990 specializing in
economics management. He has been a certified technician
of Suzhou Human Resources Bureau since December 2002
and a certified assistant government relations advisor (BB
T M) of the Ministry of Railway of the PRC since July 1991.
In addition, Mr. Xu received the Advanced Productivity
Worker award (5t 4 & (I{E)3) from the Lanzhou Railway
Bureau in March 1990 and the Taicang Outstanding
Communist Party Member award in June 1999.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited. | Annual Report 2014
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Mr. Yuan Qing (R%), aged 40, joined the Group in August
2004 and is a deputy general manager of Taicang Natural
Gas, responsible for overseeing the operation of the
production department. Mr. Yuan has extensive management
experience. He joined Taicang Natural Gas in August 2004
as a manager of the production division, responsible for gas
supply service and scheduling, manufacturing operations
and safety management, and was promoted to deputy
general manager in July 2006. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Yuan was head of general office of Suchuang Group
from January to July 2004, responsible for internal operation,
regulatory compliance and external relationships. From
1993 to 2004, Mr. Yuan served in the People’s Liberation
Army in Beijing Military Region (It ’RE[&) and retried from
the People’s Liberation Army with the rank of captain. He
graduated from China People’s Liberation Army International
Relations College (FE AR ME B BEEZR) in July
1999 specialising in Optic Intelligence Terminal Processing
(HBBEMEmEIE) and from Correspondence Institute of
the Party School of the Central Committee of the CPC (1 #£
R RER RSP in the PRC specialising in law through
its distance learning programme in December 2001. He was

awarded the qualification of engineer in June 2009.

Mr. Lian Guangyou (ZEEXK), aged 63, joined the Group
in May 2002 and is the chief engineer of Taicang Natural
Gas, responsible for its general technology and engineering
work. Mr. Lian joined Taicang Natural Gas in May 2002 as
chief engineer, responsible for designing the construction
of natural gas pipeline networks. Mr. Lian has 25 years of
experience in the management and operations of large oil
and gas enterprises. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lian
was a senior engineer and later promoted to the head of
Zhongyuan Petroleum Company Ethylene Plant (| [RAH
RNAElZ ) from January 1992 to March 2002, responsible
for managing construction projects and production. From
October 1984 to December 1991, Mr. Lian was an engineer
and later promoted to the head of Zhongyuan Oil Field
Gas Company Pucheng Gas Processing Plant (F R i H
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the purification and compression of natural gas and

&), responsible for overseeing

overall management of the plant. From September 1976
to September 1984, Mr. Lian was a technician and later
promoted to an assistant engineer at Chongqging Oil Field
(REMA),
and vacuum distillation technology. Mr. Lian graduated from
University of Petroleum (£ AZ) (now known as China
University of Petroleum (FBIAHAE)) in the PRC in August
1976 with a bachelor’s degree in oil refining. In addition,

responsible for implementation of atmospheric

he was certified as a senior engineer by China National
Petroleum Company (# B AHKARLE QT
China National Petroleum Corporation) in December 1995.

(now known as

Ms. Huang Hui (Z%), aged 46, joined the Group in November
2010 and is the chief financial officer of Taicang Natural
Gas, responsible for the overall financial management of
our Group. Ms. Huang has extensive experience in financial
management. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Huang gained
her financial management experience at Niulan Investment
Co., Ltd. Hubei (#itABEIKERR D A)
2009 to October 2010, Wuhan Third Generation Technology
Co., Ltd. (BVE=RBHEBR A7) from March 2002 to August
2009, Shanghai CIMIC Construction Materials Co., Ltd. (178
HroK 5 M BRAF]) from November 1998 to February 2002
and Wuhan Jinbolai Commerce and Trade Co., Ltd. (/&%
B E R A A from January 1995 to October 1998. Ms.
Huang graduated from Zhongnan University of Economics
(PR ARE) in the PRC in June 1995 with bachelor’s
degree in accounting. She was awarded the qualification of

from September

a certified senior accountant of the Ministry of Finance of
the PRC in May 2002.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited. | Annual Report 2014
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Mr. Ng Chi Kit (& &), aged 41, joined the Group in
December 2013 and is the chief financial officer and
the company secretary of the Company, responsible for
the oversight of the Group’s financial and accounting
operations, as well as company secretarial and internal
control function. Mr. Ng has over 16 years of experience in
accounting and auditing. Since December 2010, Mr. Ng has
been a non-executive director and a member of the audit
committee of Chaowei Power Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
951), responsible for oversight of the financial management
and reporting. From December 2010 to October 2013, Mr.
Ng served as the chief financial officer of a private company
which is engaged in wholesale agricultural produce markets
in the PRC. From January 2010 to December 2010, he
served as the chief financial officer and the company
secretary of Chaowei Power Holdings Limited, responsible
for oversight of financial and accounting operations,
company secretarial and internal control function. From
March 2000 to December 2009, Mr. Ng worked in the
Assurance and Advisory Business Services Department of
Ernst & Young and was a senior manager of Ernst & Young
from October 2006 to November 2009. From August 1997
to February 2000, Mr. Ng worked in Nelson Wheeler as an
accountant.

Mr. Ng graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Arts in
Accountancy in November 1997. Mr. Ng has been an
associate member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since January 2003 and a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since June
2006.
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Mr. Zhou Jihui (F#18), aged 52, joined the Group in April
2014 and is the deputy general manager of the Company,
responsible for the Group’s strategic development planning
and managing the Group’s construction projects. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Zhou has gained extensive
experience in the field of urban gas. From July 1985 to
March 2009, Mr. Zhou worked at Southwest Municipal
Engineering Design & Research Institute of China (BT
BT E R RARARAR)

positions including assistant engineer, engineer, senior

where he held various

engineer and chief gas engineer, responsible for urban gas
design, consultation and technology management. From
March 2009 to August 2012, Mr. Zhou was at PetroChina
Kunlun Natural Gas Usage Company Limited (4 A H 2
WMARARKFABR KA where he held various positions
including CNG chief technology officer responsible for
CNG engineering and technology management, the director
of the engineering technology department responsible for
the overall management of engineering and technology
operations, and the director of the information technology
department responsible for technology and information
technology management. Mr. Zhou obtained a bachelor’s
degree in urban gas energy supply engineering (AR
ZEEME TF2) from Chonging Institute of Architecture and
Engineering (EEEZETI2E ) (now known as Chongging
University (EEXRZ)) in the PRC in July 1985. Mr. Zhou
has been a certified senior engineer from December 1997
and a member of the Subcommittee of High Pressure Fuel
Gas Cylinders for Automobile of the National Gas Cylinder
Standardisation Technical Committee (% BIFRZ (L il
ZEgHEARERBRMAORMZES) and the Professional
Committee of Compressed Natural Gas of the China Gas
Society (FEITATREEENRRDEEFRAREXEZER)
since September 2011 and October 2011, respectively.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited. | Annual Report 2014
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Management Discussion and Analysis

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

In 2014, against the backdrop of slow global economic
recovery, China experienced a slowdown in economic
growth. However, Chinese economy still achieved a GDP
growth of 7.4% and its energy demand is increasing.
China is the largest primary energy consumer in the world.
However, China’s major source of energy is coal. It is
one of the world’s largest countries of greenhouse gases
emission and is facing various environmental challenges
including climate change, frequent smog and pollutant gas
emission. Currently, the Chinese government has set the
strategic target that carbon dioxide intensity per dollar of
GDP should drop by 40%-45% by 2020 compared to that
in 2005. Furthermore, China’s 12th Five-Year Plan set the
target to reduce carbon emission intensity by 17% in 2015
as compared to 2010.

In order to achieve the above targets, China will have to
change its coal-based energy mix during the period of 12th
Five-Year Plan and for an extended period in the future with
the goal of emphasising the development of clean energy
alternatives such as natural gas, hydropower and renewable

energy.

Natural gas, being a clean lower-carbon energy, will play
a strategic role in optimising the country’s energy supply
structure, enhancing energy efficiency and reducing
emissions, as well as combating climate change. The
development of natural gas has gained full support of the
Chinese government. The principal operation of the Group
is located in economically developed Yangtze River Delta
Region where the demand and supply of natural gas market
are both flourished. Taicang City, where the headquarter of
the Group, is adjacent to affluent cities in eastern China,
such as Suzhou, Kunshan, Changshu and Shanghai, and
is also one of the main county level industrial cities in
Jiangsu Province. Based on the statistics of the Taicang
Statistics Bureau, Taicang City has experienced strong
economic growth in recent years. Taicang City attained
a GDP of RMB106.5 billion in 2014 at a growth rate of
6.3% compared to the previous year. With accelerated
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urbanisation and the synergies arising from economic
development of local and peripheral area, it is expected
that both natural gas penetration rate and utilization rate
of Taicang City will continuously increase in the future.
In turn, it will benefit the continued growth of natural gas
demand and create more business opportunities for natural
gas market in Taicang City.

Due to environmental pressure, the Chinese government
has attached great importance to the use of natural gas in
transportation. Since 2012, various favorable policies have
been launched to encourage transportation companies
to use vehicles fueled by natural gas or hybrid fuel.
Promotional work have been actively carried out in pilot
locations and gas refuelling stations are constructed along
highways. The advantage in costs of vehicular natural gas
compared with gasoline and diesel fuels has made natural
gas vehicles popular among users. The use of compressed
natural gas (“CNG”) vehicles were promoted relatively early
in China, and they have been widely used in the forms of
public buses and taxis in cities, with market share reaching
a sizable amount. Liquefied natural gas (“LNG”) vehicles are
primarily suited for long distance transportation, especially
cargo transportation, are gradually gaining market share
and has huge market potentials. According to the 12th Five-
Year Plan for Natural Gas Development Project in Jiangsu
Province (UI#E [+ A | RARBEREFEEMRE)), it is
estimated that about 442 natural gas refuelling stations will
be built in Jiangsu Province by the end of 2015, the total
vehicular natural gas consumption in Jiangsu Province will
reach approximately 2 billion m’, representing a CAGR of
more than 40%.
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The Group is the dominant piped natural gas operator in
Taicang City, Suzhou, Jiangsu Province, the PRC, with an
exclusive right under the concession to sell and transmit
piped natural gas to users in the operating area for an initial
term of 30 years ending 31 August 2043. As at 31 December
2014, our natural gas pipeline network totalling 556.0 km
(comprising 456.6 km of completed pipelines and 99.4 km
of pipelines under construction, and covering the major
districts in Taicang City) had already covered over 90%
(in terms of length) of the natural gas pipeline network in
Taicang City.

Sale and transmission of natural gas business
Taicang City, our main operating area, is a major industrial
county-level city in Jiangsu Province, and is adjacent to
affluent cities in eastern China, such as Suzhou, Kunshan,
Changshu and Shanghai, with a substantial industrial and
commercial user base. As at 31 December 2014, the Group
had 448 commercial and industrial users, and 145,688
residential users. During the Year, sale of natural gas to our
users amounted to a total of 223.1 million m?, representing
an increase of 20.6% as compared with last year. In 2014,
revenue generated from our sale and transmission of
natural gas business increased by 25.3% to approximately
RMB689.6 million from approximately RMB550.3 million
in 2013, which accounted for 87.8% of the Group’s total
revenue. Such increase was mainly due to the increase in
piped natural gas sale and transmission business during the
Year.

Adjustment of natural gas price in 2014

The price at which we purchase natural gas from PetroChina
is determined based on the gateway station price set by
the National Development and Reform Committee of the
People’s Republic of China (“NDRC”), depending on the
usage by different types of end-users. In 2014, our average
unit purchase price for natural gas, which is calculated
by dividing our total natural gas purchase cost by total
natural gas purchase volume for the relevant period, was

RMB2.53/m?. The maximum end-user price at which we
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could sell piped natural gas to the end-users is determined
by the Taicang Price Bureau. End-user prices for industrial
and commercial usage are generally higher than those
for residential and other usage. On 10 August 2014, the
NDRC announced the increase of the gateway station price
for natural gas for non-residential usage. Following the
adjustment, the gateway station price of stock natural gas for
non-residential usage shall be adjusted from RMB2.42/m’ to
RMB2.82/m?, while gateway station price for natural gas for
residential usage shall remain unchanged (the “2014 Price
Adjustment Policy”). The adjustment has taken effect from
1 September 2014. The Taicang Price Bureau announced
pursuant to the 2014 Price Adjustment Policy, the maximum
price for natural gas for non-residential usage and other
(public utilities) usage in Taicang City shall be adjusted to
RMB3.946/m* and RMB3.766/m?* respectively. The 2014
Price Adjustment Policy has taken effect from 20 October
2014. On 30 December 2014, upon the approval of the
Jiangsu Price Bureau, Taicang Price Bureau announced that
the base selling price of residential usage natural gas in
Taicang City shall be adjusted upward from RMB2.20/m?
to RMB2.45/m* and a ladder gas pricing system shall be
implemented. The adjustment has taken effect from 1
January 2015. The price adjustment will have a positive

impact on the future business development of the Group.

Construction and connection of gas pipelines
business

As part of the Group’s business, the Group constructs and
installs urban gas pipeline networks and connects them
to the end-user pipelines for property developers and new
commercial and industrial users. During the Year, revenue
generated from natural gas pipeline construction amounted
to RMB92.6 million and accounting for 11.8% of the total
revenue for the Year, representing a decrease of 16.5% from
RMB110.9 million of the corresponding period of 2013.
Such decrease was mainly due to the decrease in number of

projects completed in during the Year.
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FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

Revenue

Our total revenue was increased by 18.4% from RMB663.7
million in 2013 to RMB785.6 million in 2014. The increase
was mainly attributable to the increase in revenue from sale
and transmission of natural gas as a result of the increase
in the volume of natural gas consumed in 2014 and the
increase in average selling price of natural gas.

Gross profit

Our gross profit was decreased by 5.0% from RMB200.1
million in 2013 to RMB190.0 million in 2014. We have
taken the effective measures to keep our gross profit stable
during the Year. The decrease was primarily due to the
significant increase in wholesale of natural gas with a lower
gross profit because of our marketing strategy to enter the
new market and our increase in selling price approved
by the local government was lag behind our increase in
purchase cost of natural gas temporarily which affect our
gross profit. Gross profit margin for sale and transmission of
natural gas decreased from 28.3% in 2013 to 20.9% in 2014
which mainly resulted from (i) the significant increase in
wholesale of natural gas in 2014 which contributed a lower
gross profit margin and (ii) the increase in average purchase

price of natural gas in 2014.

Other income and gains

Other income and gains increased by 122.2% from RMB4.5
million in 2013 to RMB10.0 million in 2014, was primarily
attributable to the gain on disposal of prepaid land lease
payments related to non-core business in 2014 mainly as a
result of our strategy to focus on our core business, and was
partially offset by the decrease in bank interest income as a
result of the decreased average bank deposits in 2014.

Selling and distribution costs

Our selling and distribution costs increased by RMB2.0
million from RMB2.8 million in 2013 to RMB4.8 million in
2014, primarily due to the increase in insurance expenses of
RMB1.7 million mainly attributable to insurance related to
our newly facilities put into operation during the Year.
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Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses increased by RMB6.3 million
from RMB20.9 million in 2013 to RMB27.2 million in
2014, was mainly due to (i) the increase in depreciation
and amortisation primarily as a result of our office building
newly developed in September 2013; (ii) the increase in
other tax expenses of primarily resulting from property tax
expenses for the new office building; and (iii) the increase
in legal and professional fees primarily resulting from the
increase in listing expenses in 2014.

Other expenses

Other expenses were relatively insignificant with the
amounts of RMB305,000 and RMB1,000 in 2013 and 2014,
respectively, mainly related to losses on disposal of property,

plant and equipment in 2013.

Finance costs

Our finance costs decreased by 55.0% from RMB42.3
million in 2013 to RMB19.0 million in 2014. The decrease
was primarily due to the decrease in average borrowing

balances in 2014 compared to the previous year.

Share of profits of associates

Our share of profits of associates increased by 50.6% from
RMB3.3 million in 2013 to RMB4.9 million in 2014. The
increase was mainly attributable to the increase in sales of

CNG gas business of our associated company in 2014.

Income tax expense

Our income tax expense increased by 7.1% from RMB35.1
million in 2013 to RMB37.6 million in 2014, primarily
attributable to our increased taxable income for the year
2014. Our effective tax rate remained stable at 24.8% and
24.4% in 2013 and 2014 respectively.

Profit attributable to owners of the parent

In 2014, profit attributable to owners of the parent
amounted to approximately RMB116.4 million, representing
an increase of approximately 9.1% over approximately
RMB106.7 million for 2013.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited. | Annual Report 2014

THRAX

BPIITERASZ A2013FHARKE209E88
TIBIMARK63IBEETLE2014FMARK
27288 DEEHROEZEHREMR
201359 A AR B A KIES I E Fl# 8y
B (hEZHRRIIRAKRENYER B
Y SHMBMBRAZIEM: RiiNEZHR
2014F M EMEBRIEN  SERREEER
e

HAifA

H AT MN2013F R2014F 5 Rl B ARE
305,0007C X A R®1,0007T © ©EEAEE NS
WAREK - JHEZEH2013FHEME - BE
BREEEMNBLIER -

L& AR
FFHRERABE2013FMARKB423F
BIURA55.0%E2014F M ARE19.08 8
TC o A EBHRR2014F N FHEREHRE
EFERD o

DAL E N R RER

B EEE QR EF B2013FHARE
338 & T N50.6%E2014F AR 4.9
BEIT - EMHEZEHREMOEBE QTR
20145 BRI R AR FETSSHE L N -

FriiF 2

B EHASYHE2013FNARE3S1H
BT M7 1%E2014F M AR 37688
TTc EEZ2HAREMIN20145F M ERTIU AL
e HMA BB ER2013F R20145F 4
FHET D51 A524.8%%24.4% °

FAREE AENRZF
R2014F > B RAIBEAABGEFGEA
RiEE116.485 87T B2013FNHARE

e —

106.7B BT IN4I9.1% °



Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had net current
liabilities of approximately RMB57,592,000 (31 December
2013: approximately RMB376,789,000) of which cash
and bank balances were approximately RMB125,377,000
(31 December 2013: approximately RMB69,808,000).
Total borrowings were approximately RMB120,000,000
(31 December 2013: approximately RMB499,000,000). The
amount of bank borrowings as at 31 December 2014 were
denominated in RMB and bore interest at 7.21% per annum
and were not repayable within one year.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s current ratio (current
assets/current liabilities) was 0.81 (31 December 2013: 0.52)
and gearing ratio (total borrowings/total assets) was
approximately 12.4% (31 December 2013: approximately
44.2%). The Group has sufficient cash and available banking
facilities to meet its commitments and working capital
requirements. This strong cash position enables the Group
to explore potential investment and potential business

development opportunities to expand it in China.

Exchange rate fluctuation risk

As all of the Group’s businesses were situated in the
PRC, substantially all of its income and expenses were
denominated in RMB, therefore, there were no significant
risk relating to exchange fluctuation. The Group will closely
monitor the interest rate and exchange rate of the market
and make appropriate responses when necessary.

Contingent liabilities
The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities
as at 31 December 2014 (31 December 2013: nil).
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Charge on assets

At the end of the reporting period, certain of the Group’s
assets were pledged to secure banking facilities granted to
the Group. The aggregate carrying amounts of the assets
of the Group pledged at the end of each of the reporting
periods are as follows:

EEEHA

RBERKR - AEECETETEENARE
BRI AKENRITHE - NEREHR - K
SECEREENREAENT

2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETTT ARETTT
Property, plant and equipment W - BEkEE 130,319 251,257
Prepaid land lease payments TR+ AR S RRIE 4,522 6,968
Restricted bank deposits SR HIERITIE R 4,513 6,463
Capital commitments BAESE
The Group had the following capital commitments at the AEBRFRIEREENT -
end of the year:
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥EFTTT AREFT
Contracted, but not provided for: EETAME KB
Plant and machinery 55 B 28 - 7,742

Prospects

Looking forward to 2015, China’s economy is expected
to maintain a stable development and enter the “New
Normal” phase. With an aim to support and promote
economic and social development, the central government
started the construction of the Third West-East Natural Gas
Transmission Pipeline in 2012 and is expected to complete
and commence operation in 2015, which will provide the
markets along the pipeline a transmission capacity of 30
billion m? natural gas per year. Such energy transportation
artery with strategic significance could effectively ease
the supply and demand tension of natural gas in central
and southern China and coastal provinces in the southeast
region, and hence maintain a stable supply of natural
gas to promote the energy structure optimization, energy
conservation and emission reduction, which would create
favorable business opportunities for the natural gas market
of Jiangsu Province.
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The Group has a well-established strategic relationship with
PetroChina for more than eight years, which ensured the
reliable natural gas supply for the Group. Meanwhile, the
Group has entered into a memorandum of understanding
with Jiangsu Province Natural Gas Company Limited, an
associated company of Sinopec, which has agreed to supply
us with piped natural gas in the future. The Group is in the
process of constructing the third city gateway station which
is connected with the Sichuan-East Transmission Pipeline
of Sinopec and is expected to commence operation in
2015, which is of great significance for the operation and
development of the natural gas business and the future

business expansion plan of the Group.

According to the notice issued by the NDRC in February
2015,
incremental natural gas will be synchronized from 1 April
2015,

user gas supply price, while the gateway station price for

the gateway station price of stock natural gas and
together with the pilot implementation of direct

residential usage will not be adjusted. Pursuant to such
notice, although the increase of the maximum gateway
station price of stock natural gas may lead to the increase of
the Group’s stock natural gas purchase price, but the Group
intends to apply to Taicang Price Bureau for price adjustment
in respect of its natural gas sold to non-residential users, in
order to pass the corresponding increase of stock natural gas

purchase price to non-residential users.

To fully capitalise the Group’s competitive strength in
Taicang City and capture business opportunities that
will arise from the expected increase in population and
continuing development in Taicang City, the Group will
continue to increase the penetration rate of piped natural
gas and improve its operation facilities in its existing market.
In addition to the Group’s organic growth, the Group seeks
to expand its natural gas business coverage to cities or
regions outside Taicang City and further promote business
development through acquiring controlling interests in local
gas operators outside Taicang City.
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With the continuous growth in natural gas vehicle ownership
in China, the CNG and LNG refueling stations market is also
developing. As disclosed in the Company’s prospectus dated
27 February 2015 (the “Prospectus”), the Group intends
to expand into CNG and LNG refuelling station business
through the proposed acquisition of the CNG/LNG refuelling
station business of Suzhou Suling Automobile Service Co.,
Ltd., (“Suzhou Suling Automobile Service”), including one
CNG refuelling station and one LNG refuelling station
which had been in operation, and one combined CNG/
LNG refuelling station under construction, as well as the
construction of 9 additional combined CNG/LNG refuelling
stations in Taicang City and Suzhou during the period from
2015 to 2017, to achieve greater momentum for the long-
term stable development of the Group’s business.

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 16
February 2015. The Company has not granted any shares
options up to the date of this annual report.

Human Resources and Employees’ Remuneration

As at 31 December 2014, the Group employed a total of
152 (31 December 2013: 146) staff members in the PRC and
Hong Kong.

During the year under review, the total cost of employees
amounted to approximately RMB8,148,000. The Group
sought to further strengthen staff training by offering focused
training programmes and study tours to management and
professional technical personnel, and disseminating the
latest information of government policy on the distribution
and sale of piped natural gas business to staff. The Group
continued to strive for the enhancement of professional
standards and overall qualities of its staff. The Group
also provided competitive salary packages to its staff,
encouraging them to be fully dedicated in their work and to

leverage their capabilities in serving its customers.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Group is committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests
of shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability. The Company has been in compliance with
the mandatory code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) since
the shares of the Company (the “Shares”) were listed (the
“Listing”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on 11 March 2015 (the “Listing Date”).
The key corporate governance principles and practices of
the Company are outlined later in this annual report.

The Shares were listed on the Stock Exchange with effect
from the Listing Date. As the Company was not a listed
company during the year ended 31 December 2014, the CG
Code was not applicable to it during that period. The CG
Code has been applicable to the Company with effect from
the Listing Date.

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the
Group, oversees the Group’s strategic decisions and monitors
business and performance. The Board has delegated the
authority and responsibility for day-to-day management
and operation of the Group to the senior management of
the Group. To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs, the Board has established three Board committees,
namely the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”)
and the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”), (together, the “Board Committees”). The Board
has delegated to the Board Committees responsibilities as
set out in their respective terms of reference.
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LERERRS

Board Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises
seven members, consisting of three executive Directors, one
non-executive Director and three independent non-executive

Directors as set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Su Aping (Chairman)
Ms. Zhu Yaying

Mr. Du Shaozhou

Non-executive Director
Mr. Xu Lei

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Zhou Qingzu

Mr. He Junjie

Mr. Luk Wai Keung

The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 10 to
16 of this annual report. Save as disclosed in the biographies
of the Directors and that Mr. Su Aping and Ms. Zhu Yaying
have jointly own and operate a number of companies, the
Board members do not have any family, financial or business
relationship among themselves, and between the chairman

and the chief executive.

Since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual
report, the Company has been in compliance with the
requirements of Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors with at least one
independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial

management expertise.

The Company has also complied with the requirement of
Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of independent non-executive Directors representing at least
one-third of the Board.
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The Company has received the annual confirmation from
each of the Independent Non-executive Directors on his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
the Company considers each of them to be independent.

Board meeting

The Board intends to hold board meetings regularly at
least four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals.
Notices of not less than fourteen days will be given for all
regular board meetings to provide all Directors with an
opportunity to attend and include matters in the agenda for
regular board meetings.

For other Board and Board Committee meetings,
reasonable notice will generally be given. The agenda and
accompanying board papers are dispatched to the Directors
or Board Committee members at least three days before the
meetings to ensure that they have sufficient time to review
the papers and be adequately prepared for the meetings.
When Directors or Board Committee members are unable
to attend a meeting, they will be advised of the matters to
be discussed and given an opportunity to make their views

known to the chairman prior to the meeting.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committee
meetings are/will be recorded in sufficient detail to
include the matters considered by the Board and the Board
Committee and the decisions reached, including any
concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each
Board meeting and Board Committee meeting are/will be
sent to the Directors for comments within a reasonable time
after the date on which the meeting is held.
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TEEARS

Attendance at Board and Board Committee

Meetings

Attendance of each Director at all the Board meetings and
Board Committee meetings held from the Listing Date up
to the date of this annual report (the “Relevant Period”) is

set out as follows. No general meeting has been held by the

Ex%

Company during the Relevant Period.

= A A
HEE

EEEREEZESERNHERBR

FEEENLETRAYREARFERA M ILHE
(EEHE]) AMBTHEHEFTEEENR
M FEIEREINT - AR
AN ARHR AL ERITERMBRRAE -

Audit  Nomination Remuneration
Board ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee
meeting meeting meeting meeting
Bxg EnZEBEe® REL%ZEg® FHZEEe
Name of director EEMA g3 g& S g&
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Su Aping (Chairman) BWMELEE (FF) 71 N/ATER 171 N/ATEA
Ms. Zhu Yaying RERRT 71 NADER  NATER 11
Mr. Du Shaozhou HAaELE 71 NATER NATER NATER
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Xu Lei HELE 11 /1 NATER  NATER
Independent Non-executive BV FHITES
Directors
Mr. Zhou Qingzu BB L E 1/1 1/1 1/1 11
Mr. He Junjie BN e 1/1 1/1 1/1 11
Mr. Luk Wai Keung BEfZog st 1/1 171 N/ATER  NATER
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Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on
16 February 2015 with written terms of reference in
compliance with Rules 3.21 and 3.22 of the Listing Rules
and code provision C.3.3 of the Code. The Audit Committee
has four members, three of them are independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Zhou Qingzu, Mr. He
Junjie and Mr. Luk Wai Keung, and one of them is a non-
executive Director, namely Mr. Xu Lei. Mr. Zhou Qingzu,
the Company’s independent non-executive Director, has
been appointed as the chairman of the Audit Committee.
Mr. Luk Wai Keung possesses the appropriate professional
qualifications required under the Listing Rules.

The primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to
make recommendations to the Board of the appointment
and removal of the external auditors, review financial
statements and review and supervise the financial reporting
system and internal control procedures of the Group. The
Audit Committee has access to independent professional
advice, if required, and is provided with sufficient resources
to perform its duties.

The Audit Committee held a meeting on 27 March 2015,
with all members present in person or through telegraphic
communication, during which the following works were

performed:
e Assess the independence of the Company’s auditors.

e Discussion with external auditors about the scope of
work and fee in respect of their audit work for the year
ended 31 December 2014.

e Review the Group’s financial results for the year ended
31 December 2014, significant issues on financial
reporting and internal control, appointment of external
auditors, and arrangements for the employees to raise

concerns about possible improprieties.

The attendance of the Audit Committee members at the
above meeting is set out in the above section headed
“Attendance at Board and Board Committee Meetings”.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee
on 16 February 2015 with written terms of reference in
compliance with Rules 3.25 and 3.26 of the Listing Rules
and Code provision B.1.2 of the Code. The Remuneration
Committee has three members, two of them are independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. He Junjie and Mr. Zhou
Qingzu, and one of them is an executive Director, namely,
Ms. Zhu Yaying. Mr. He Junjie, the Company’s independent
non-executive Director, has been appointed as the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration
Committee has access to independent professional advice,
if required, and is provided with sufficient resources to
perform its duties.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to
make recommendations to the Board as to the Company’s
policy and structure of the remuneration for the Directors
and senior management and on the establishment of
a formal and transparent procedure for developing

remuneration policy.

The Remuneration Committee will consult with chairman
of the Board about the remuneration proposals for the other

executive Directors.

Remuneration Committee held a meeting on 27 March
2015 with all members present in person. The meeting was
held to assess the performance of the Directors and senior
management, discuss and review the overall remuneration
policy and structure. Recommendations have been made to
the Board.

The attendance of the Remuneration Committee members

at the above meeting is set out in the above section headed

“Attendance at Board and Board Committee Meetings”.
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Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 16
February 2015 with written terms of reference in compliance
with code provision A.5.1 and A.5.2 of the Code. The
Nomination Committee consists of three members, one of
them is an executive Director, namely Mr. Su Aping, and two
of them are independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. He Junjie and Mr. Zhou Qingzu. Mr. Su Aping has been
appointed as the chairman of the Nomination Committee.
The Nomination Committee has access to professional
advice, if required, and is provided with sufficient resources
to perform its duties.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to
review the structure, size and composition of the Board,
assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors and to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and removal of Directors of the Company.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination
Committee would take into account various aspects set
out in the Board Diversity Policy, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and industry
and regional experience. The Nomination Committee would
discuss and agree on measurable objectives for achieving
diversity on the Board, where necessary, and recommend
them to the Board for adoption.

The Nomination Committee held a meeting on 27 March
2015 with all members present in person. The meeting was
held to discuss and review the composition and structure of
the Board and senior management. The executive Directors
were appointed based on their qualification and experience
in relation to the Group’s business. The independent
non-executive Directors were appointed based on their
professional qualifications and experience in their respective

areas.

The attendance of the Nomination Committee members at
the above meeting is set out in the above section headed
“Attendance at Board and Board Committee Meetings”.
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LERERRS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Company shall
establish comprehensive corporate governance practices and
procedures. From the Listing Date to the date of this annual
report, the Board has:

(1) established and reviewed the corporate governance
policies and practices of the Company as well as made

relevant recommendations;

(2) reviewed and monitored the training and continuous
development of the Directors and senior management;

(3) reviewed and monitored the policies and practices of
the Company regarding the compliance of relevant

legal and regulatory requirements;

(4) established, reviewed and monitored code of conduct

for Directors and employees; and

(5) reviewed as to whether the Company has complied
with the CG Code and made necessary disclosures in

the annual report.

This corporate governance report has been reviewed by the

Board in discharge of its corporate governance function.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

As required by code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the
roles of chairman and chief executive should be separated
and performed by different individuals. The chairman of
the Board and the general manager of the Company are
currently two separate positions held by Mr. Su Aping and
Mr. Du Shaozhou respectively with distinct responsibilities.
The chairman of the Board is responsible for overall strategic
planning and overseeing the general corporate, financial
and compliance affairs of the Group. The general manager is
primarily responsible for the strategic decision making and
the management of the Group.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
APPOINTMENT

The non-executive Director is not appointed for a specific

- TERM OF

term of longer than three years.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing from the Listing Date and shall continue
thereafter unless terminated by not less than six months’
written notice. Each of the non-executive Director and the
independent non-executive Directors has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from the Listing Date unless terminated
by three months’ written notice or in certain circumstances
in accordance with the terms of the relevant letter of

appointment.

None of the Directors who is proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has any service
agreement which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation (other than

statutory compensation).

The rules and procedures governing the appointment,
retirement, re-election and removal of Directors are set out
in the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles
of Association”). The Nomination Committee is responsible
for reviewing the Board structure, size and composition and
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors.
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NOMINATION, APPOINTMENT, RETIREMENT
AND RE-ELECTION

In accordance with the Articles of Association, at least one-
third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number
is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest
to, but not less than, one-third) shall retire from office
by rotation and shall be eligible for re-election and re-
appointment at every annual general meeting provided that
each Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years and any new Director appointed
to fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall
submit himself/herself for re-election by shareholders at the

next annual general meeting after appointment.

DIRECTORS’” AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuer” (the “Model
Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its
code of conduct regarding dealings in the securities of
the Company by the Directors and the Group’s senior
management who, because of his/her office or employment,
is likely to possess inside information in relation to the
Group or the Company’s securities.

Upon specific enquiry, all the Directors confirmed that they
have complied with the Model Code during the Relevant
Period. In addition, the Company is not aware of any non-
compliance of the Model Code by the senior management
of the Group up to the date of annual report.

DIRECTORS” CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Directors must keep abreast of their collective
responsibilities. All Board members received an induction
package covering the regulatory obligations of a director
of a listed company. The Company also plans to provide
briefings and other training to develop and refresh the
Directors’ knowledge and skills. The Company continuously
updates Directors on the latest developments regarding the
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory and statutory
requirements from time to time, to ensure compliance and
enhance their awareness of good corporate governance

practices.
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Directors and members of senior management have received
training regarding a wide spectrum of areas relating to
directors’ duties and corporate governance in 2014. The
Company believes that such training would keep them
abreast of relevant legal requirements and good corporate
governance practices.

In particular, on 12 August 2014, the Directors (including all
of the current Directors as at the Listing Date) and members
of senior management of the Company attended a training in
relation to the duties and ongoing obligations of directors of
listed companies, which was conducted by the Hong Kong

legal advisors to the Company.

REMUNERATION OF THE SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2014, except for one of
the members of senior management whose remuneration fell
within the ranging from HK$1.0 million to HK$1.5 million,
the remuneration of the rest of the members of senior
management were below HK$1 million.

Further details of the remuneration of Directors and five
highest paid employees have been set out in notes 8 and 9

to the financial statements.

AUDITORS” REMUNERATION
December 2014, the total
remuneration paid or payable to the Company’s auditors,

For the year ended 31

Ernst & Young, for audit and audit related services totalling
RMB1,250,000.

In addition, Ernst & Young was appointed as the Company’s
reporting accountant for its initial public offering of Shares,
in relation to which total fees paid or payable to Ernst &
Young was RMB4,730,000.
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An analysis of the remuneration paid or payable to Ernst &
Young is set out below:

BRC N SEN LK EEEHAOME D
g

Amount

(RMB)

Items of auditors’ services ZHEMRIEIER 58 (AR®)

Audit services: Annual audit service R  FEEERBE 1,250,000

Reporting accountant’s services

in relation to Listing BEE e B e A RS 4,730,000

Total @Et 5,980,000
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL EEEBVBRRNUBEREST

REPORTING IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibility
to prepare accounts of the Group and other financial
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and the
Company’s management will provide information and
explanation to the Board to enable it to make informed
assessments of the financial and other decisions.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going

concern.

The statement of the auditors of the Company in respect of
their reporting responsibilities on the Company’s financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2014 is set out
in the “Independent Auditors’ Report” contained in this
annual report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the
Board to maintain an adequate internal control system to
safeguard shareholder investments and Company assets and
review the effectiveness of such system on an annual basis.

During the Year, the Board has adopted the following

measures:

(1) the Company has engaged an internal control
consultant to conduct a review of the Group’s internal
control systems and has implemented the relevant
suggestions proposed by our internal control consultant.
As the Company’s business continues to expand, the
Company will refine and enhance our internal control
systems to respond to the evolving requirements of the

expanded operations as appropriate;

(2) the Company secretary will act as the principal channel
of communication between members of the Group
and the Company in relation to legal, regulatory and
financial reporting compliance matters of the Group
as well as the chief coordinator to oversee the internal
control procedures in general;

(3) the Company has engaged an internal control
consultant to assess the internal control system for not
less than 12 months after the Listing.

Based on the above, the Board is of the view that the
enhanced internal control measures adopted by the Group
are adequate and effective in reducing the risk of future
non-compliance by the Group with legal and regulatory
requirements.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ng Chi Kit, the company secretary of the Company,
reports to the chairman of the Board. The details of his
biography is set out in the section headed “Profile of
Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report. Mr.
Ng also confirmed that he has taken no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training during the year ended 31
December 2014.
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LERERRS

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening of extraordinary general meeting on
requisition by shareholders

Pursuant to article 64 of the Articles of Association,
shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital
of the Company having the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the company secretary
of the Company (the “Company Secretary”), to require an
extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”) to be called by the
Board. The written requisition must specify the business to
be transacted on the meeting, which shall be held within
two months after the deposit of such requisition.

If within 21 days from the date of the deposit of the
requisition, the Board fails to proceed to convene an
EGM, the shareholder(s) concerned may themselves
convene an EGM, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the shareholder(s) making the requisition as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to such
shareholder(s) by the Company.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to
the Board

Shareholder(s) may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing through the Company
Secretary whose contact details are as follows:

Address: Suite 2703, 27th Floor, TOOQRC, 100 Queen’s
Road Central, Hong Kong
Email: ir@taicanggas.com

The Company Secretary shall forward the shareholder(s)’
enquiries and concerns to the Board and/or relevant board
committees of the Company, where appropriate, to respond
to the shareholder(s)” questions.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited. | Annual Report 2014

R SRR
ERRERBHARREAE

RIBAZERMAFEe4lk  NE2Z2RKAH
FAETIDRARAHRERN (MBERARF]
BRAGRREN) +02—HBR - RE
AR EEREBRNEFG AR AN QR
E(RAME]) BLHERER  BXES
SARREFIARE ([RRENAE]) - %
EMENRARRGFRNE LREMNEIER - M
RERNEZABERKEMIMEARET -

WEZERE21IBAR  EFSRAARARKRR
KRR E - RIBRIRCR A B % A MR 5
RE MEEZERLKBRAEETGREAHK
eMABEELNMARSARANRARIARKSE
fEHELRS

MEESXERREANEF

BRABRAZEELALARMEEINE
MEARBIFETESS  QAEWEMNH
MBI

Hur - BBEZ2FARNEF 10095 100QRC27E
2703%

B : ir@taicanggas.com

NEIWERBRIRENEARBIFTETE

Fek,/IARAENEBRESTSLZE S (B

HE) UNEREEH -



Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meetings by shareholders

Any shareholder of the Company who wish to put forward
proposals at general meetings of the Company shall submit
such proposals to the Board in writing for the Board’s
consideration not less than 7 days prior to the date of a
general meeting through the Company Secretary of the
Company whose contact details are set out in the paragraph
headed “Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to
the Board” under the section headed “Shareholders Rights”
above.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that effective and proper investor
relations play a vital role in creating Shareholders’ value,
enhancing the corporate transparency as well as establishing
market confidence. The Company discloses information in
compliance with the Listing Rules, and publishes periodic
reports and announcements to the public in accordance
with the relevant laws and regulations. The primary focus of
the Company is to ensure information disclosure is timely,
fair, accurate and complete, thereby enabling Shareholders,
investors as well as the public to make rational and
informed decisions. Updated key information and business
development of the Group are also available on the
Company’s website to enable Shareholders and investors to
have timely access to information about the Group.

The Company also endeavours to maintain an on-going
dialogue with Shareholders and in particular, through
general meetings which provides a forum for Shareholders
to raise comments and exchange views with the Board.
Directors (or their delegates as appropriate) will be available
at the annual general meetings of the Company to address

Shareholders” queries.

The Company will continue to take measures to ensure

effective Shareholders” communication and transparency.

There has been no change in the Articles of Association
since the Listing Date and up to date version of the Articles
of Association is available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.
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ESTHRE

The directors present their report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2014.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal business activities of the Group include the
distribution and sale of piped natural gas, the provision of
natural gas transmission and acting as the main contractor
of construction and installation of gas pipelines in the PRC.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the

Group’s principal activities during the Year.

Results and dividends

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2014
and the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at
that date are set out in the financial statements on pages 63
to 70.

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of a
final dividend of RMB0.022 (equivalent to HK$0.028) per
ordinary Share for shareholders whose names appear on
the Register of Members of the Company on Friday, 12
June 2015. Subject to approval by the shareholders of the
Company at the annual general meeting of the Company
to be held on Wednesday, 3 June 2015, the proposed final
dividend is expected to be paid on Friday, 26 June 2015
to the shareholders of the Company. This represented a
total distribution of RMB17.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2014 (without taking into account the Shares that
may be issued pursuant to the exercise of the over-allotment
option granted by the Company).

Summary financial information

The Share were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 11 March 2015, a summary of the published
results and assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests of
the Group for the last four financial years, as extracted from
the audited financial statements, is set out on page 168.
This summary does not form part of the audited financial

statements.
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Property, plant and equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment,
and investment properties of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in notes 14 to the financial
statements, respectively.

Share capital
Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during

the Year are set out in notes 29 to the financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association or the law of Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata

basis to existing Shareholders.

Purchase, redemption or sale of listed securities of
the Company

The Shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 11 March 2015, neither the Company, nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the
Company’s listed securities from the Listing Date to the date
of this annual report.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the Year are set out in note 30(b) to the
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity, respectively.

Distributable reserves

At 31 December 2014, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of
Part 6 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622),
amounted to RMB309,558,000, of which RMB0.022 per
Share has been proposed as a final dividend for the Year
(which represented a total distribution of RMB17.6 million,
without taking into account the Share that may be issued
pursuant to the exercise of the over-allotment option granted
by the Company). In addition, the amount previously
included in the Company’s share premium account and
transferred to share capital during the Year, in the amount of
HK$5,876,007, may be distributed in the form of fully paid

bonus shares.
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Major customers and suppliers

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for 37% of the total sales for the Year
and sales to the largest customer for the Year amounted
to 9% of the total sales for the Year. Purchases from the
Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for 95% of the total
purchases for the Year and purchase from the largest supplier
for the Year amounted to 80% of the total purchases for the
Year.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their close
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge
of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had any beneficial interest in the five largest
customers or five largest suppliers of the Group during the
Year.

Directors
The directors of the Company during the Year were:

Executive directors:
Mr. Su Aping (Chairman)  (appointed as a director on
26 February 2014 and
re-designated as chairman
and an executive director
on 12 September 2014)

Ms. Zhu Yaying (appointed as a director on
4 July 2013 and
re-designated as
an executive director on
12 September 2014)

Mr. Du Shaozhou (appointed on
12 September 2014)

Non-executive director:
Mr. Xu Lei (appointed as a director on
27 February 2014 and
re-designated as
a non-executive director

on 12 September 2014)

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 16
February 2015, Mr. Zhou Qingzu, Mr. He Junjie and Mr. Luk
Wai Keung were appointed as independent non-executive
directors of the Company.
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Pursuant to the provisions in the Articles of Association, Mr.
Su Aping, Ms. Zhu Yaying and Mr. Xu Lei will retire from
office as Director by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-

election.

The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from Mr. Zhou Qingzu, Mr. He Junjie and
Mr. Luk Wai Keung, and as at the date of this report still
considers them to be independent.

Directors’ and senior management’s biographies
Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 10 to

22 of this annual report.

Directors’ service contracts

Each of our executive Directors, Mr. Su Aping, Ms.
Zhu Yaying and Mr. Du Shaozhou, has entered into a
service contract with us for an initial term of three years
commencing from 11 March 2015 and shall continue
thereafter unless terminated by not less than six months’

written notice.

Each of our non-executive Director, Mr. Xu Lei, and our
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Zhou Qingzu,
Mr. He Junjie and Mr. Luk Wai Keung, has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from 11 March 2015 unless terminated
by three months’ written notice or in certain circumstances
in accordance with the terms of the relevant letter of
appointment.

Apart from the foregoing, no director proposed for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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Directors’ interests in contracts

No Director had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business
of the Group to which the Company, its holding company,
or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party
subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during the
Year.

Management contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Group were entered into or in existence as at the end of the

Year or at any time during the Year.

Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short
positions in shares and underlying shares and
debentures

As at the date of this annual report, the interests and
short positions of the directors and chief executive of
the Company in the shares, and underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Cap. 571) (the “SFO”)), as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

Issuers, were as follows:
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Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

Report of the Directors
EERHE

Percentage of
the Company’s

Through issued share

controlled capital

corporation =¥\ VNG

BRRE BEITRA

Name of directors i Nature of Interest ERInE EERE ant
Mr. Su Aping (1) BRSP4 (1) Interest in a controlled ~ AFIEEE A #EE -

corporation, interest  FE{BiEi
of spouse 410,460,000 (L) 51.31
Ms. Zhu Yaying (2) KBRZL (2) Interest of spouse L 410,460,000 (L) 51.31

(L) denotes long position

Notes:

(1) 410,460,000 Shares are beneficially owned by Fung Yu
Holdings Limited, which in turn is owned as to 70% by
Mr. Su Aping and 30% by Ms. Zhu Yaying. Mr. Su Aping is
deemed to be interested in all the shares of the Company
held by Fung Yu Holdings Limited pursuant to the SFO.
Besides, Mr. Su Aping is the spouse of Ms. Zhu Yaying.
Under the SFO, Mr. Su Aping is deemed to be interested
in the same number of Shares in which Ms. Zhu Yaying is
interested.

(2) Ms. Zhu Yaying is the spouse of Mr. Su Aping. Under the
SFO, Ms. Zhu Yaying is deemed to be interested in the same
number of Shares in which Mr. Su Aping is interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this annual report,
none of the Directors and chief executive had registered an
interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

Issuers.
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EEEWE

’

Substantial shareholders’ and other persons
interests and short positions in shares and
underlying shares

As at the date of this annual report, so far as is known to the
directors or chief executive of the Company, the following
shareholders (excluding directors and chief executive of the
Company) had interests and short positions of 5% or more
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

FTERRREMATRRG RAEBRG
AVt ROR R

WAERAS  BARAEEREETHA
BFA - ATRE (TREAAREERE
BITHAR) RAREBR RADBAKL o
B5%RL LA BBERAR AREES K
M e B33 HA T EEMEEEERA
MRS RO ¢

Name ZR Nature of interest &

Percentage of
the Company’s
issued share

Number of capital

ordinary HARA

shares held BEIRA

w1t E R ERRAEA ERil

Fung Yu Holdings Fung Yu Holdings  Beneficial owner BB 410,460,000 (L) 51.31
Limited (1) Limited (1)

Action East RaBE Beneficial owner BLHEAA 165,540,000 (L) 20.69
International BRAR (2)
Limited (2)

Prax Capital China Prax Capital China  Interest of a controlled A Z AR K= 165,540,000 (L) 20.69
Growth Fund 111, Growth Fund Il corporation
L.P.(2) L.P.(2)

Prax Capital China Prax Capital China  Interest of a controlled ~ AX AR M= 165,540,000 (L) 20.69
Growth Fund Il Growth Fund Il corporation
GP, Ltd. (2) GP, Ltd. (2)

(L) denotes long position (L) RREFE

Notes: B2t

(1) Fung Yu Holdings Limited is held as to 70% by Mr. Su Aping
and 30% by Ms. Zhu Yaying.

(2) Action East International Limited is wholly-owned by
Prax Capital China Growth Fund IIl, L.P.. Under the SFO,
Prax Capital China Growth Fund Ill, L.P. is deemed to be
interested in the same number of Shares in which Action
East International Limited is interested.
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Prax Capital China Growth Fund III,L.P. is a limited
partnership established in the Cayman Islands whose sole
general partner is Prax Capital China Growth Fund Il GP,
Ltd., a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this annual report,
no person, other than the directors and chief executive of
the Company, whose interests are set out in the section
“Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short positions
in shares and underlying shares and debentures” above,
had registered an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company that was required to be
recorded pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

Connected transactions
During the Year, the Group has entered into the following

connected and continuing connected transactions.

Connected transaction

During the Year, the Group entered into an agreement with
Suchuang Group to sell certain properties to Suchuang
Group for a total consideration of RMB34,074,000. The
consideration is determined and agreed by the two parties
by reference to the market value based on valuations
performed by an independent professionally qualified valuer.
The transaction was completed during the Year. Further
details of the transaction are included in notes 33 to the

financial statements.

Continuing connected transactions

Suzhou Suling Automobile Service operates gasoline and
diesel refilling stations as well as CNG and LNG refuelling
stations in Taicang City and sells diesel fuel, gasoline, CNG
and LNG to customers in the ordinary and usual course of
its business. Its customers during the Year included certain
members of the Group.
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Suchuang Group, as licensor, has entered into a trademark
licensing agreement with the Group, as licensee, on 1
August 2014, pursuant to which Suchuang Group agreed
to grant to the Group the right to use the trademarks “#t
8l and "@ " in the PRC in connection with the Company’s
business on a perpetual and non-exclusive basis at a
nominal consideration of RMB1.00.

Suchuang Group, as lessee, has entered into a tenancy
agreement and a confirmation letter to the tenancy
agreement with the Group, as lessor, on 20 October 2013
and 13 September 2014 respectively (together, the “Taicang
Tenancy Agreements”). Pursuant to the Taicang Tenancy
Agreements, Suchuang Group has agreed to lease from
the Group an office premise of 1,082 square meter on 5th
Floor, No. 305 Zhenghe Middle Road, Loudong Street,
Taicang City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC for an annual rental
of RMB346,500 (exclusive of tax and management fee).
The Taicang Tenancy Agreements is for a period of three
years commencing from 21 October 2013 subject to early
termination by mutual consent between the parties. During
the Year, the rental paid by Suchuang Group under the
Taicang Tenancy Agreements amounted to RMB346,500.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company
have reviewed the continuing connected transactions set out
above and have confirmed that these continuing connected
transactions were entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group; (ii) on normal commercial
terms or on terms no less favourable to the Group than
terms available to or from independent third parties; and (iii)
in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of

the shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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Ernst & Young, the Company’s auditors, were engaged to
report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information and
with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Ernst & Young have issued their
unqualified letter containing their findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed above by the Group in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter
has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Details of related party transactions undertaken in the
normal course of business of the Group are provided under
note 33 to the financial statements.

Upon the listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, certain related party transactions set out
in Notes 33(b) to the financial statements (rental income
received from Suchuang Group, purchase of motor vehicle
fuels from Suzhou Suling Automobile Service and leasing of
trademarks from Suchuang Group) are regarded as exempt
continuing connected transactions of the Group and were
exempt from the reporting, annual review, announcement,
circular and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements contained under Chapter 14A of the Listing

Rules.

The sale of certain properties to Suchuang Group by the
Group is an one-off connected transaction entered into by
the Group during the Year and was completed prior to the
Listing Date.

Report of the Directors
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Report of the Directors

Besides, Taicang Suchuang LPG Co., Ltd. and Suzhou
Shunchuang Pipeline Engineering Co., Ltd. ceased to be
connected persons of the Company prior to the Listing Date
and the related party transactions with Taicang Suchuang
LPG Co., Ltd. and Suzhou Shunchuang Pipeline Engineering
Co., Ltd. as set out in notes 33(b) to the financial statements
did not constitute continuing connected transactions under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules upon listing of the Shares
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float under
the Listing Rules as at 27 March 2015, being the date of this

annual report.

Directors’ interests in a competing business

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the
following directors are considered to have interests in a
business which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group, as

defined in the Listing Rules, as set out below:

Ms. Zhu Yaying, an executive Director, and Mr. Su Aping’s
and Ms. Zhu Yaying’s associates are indirectly interested
in Suzhou Suling Automobile Service which is principally
engaged in the operation of diesel and gasoline refuelling
stations, as well as CNG and LNG refuelling stations (the
CNG and LNG refuelling station business operated by
Suzhou Suling Automobile Service is referred to as “CNG/
LNG Business”).

On 23 February 2015, Suzhou Suling Automobile Service
and the Company entered into a deed of first offer (the
“Deed of First Offer”), pursuant to which Suzhou Suling
Automobile Service granted to the Company an irrevocable
right exercisable after rectification of the non-compliance
matters in relation to the CNG/LNG Business, for acquiring
at one or more than one time, within a period of three years
from the Deed of First Offer (extendable at the Company’s

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited. | Annual Report 2014
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sole discretion), all or part of the CNG/LNG Business at
the Company’s sole and absolute discretion, at the lower of
their set-up cost or fair market value to be determined by
an internationally reputable firm of accountants or valuers,
subject to the applicable governmental approvals, board
approval and shareholders’ approval of the Company (as
may be required under the Listing Rules).

Up to the date of this annual report, the Company has not
exercised its right under the Deed of First Offer.

Deed of Non-competition

Each of Mr. Su Aping, Ms. Zhu Yaying and Fung Yu Holdings
Limited (the “Controlling Shareholders”) has confirmed
to the Company of his/her/its compliance with the non-
competition undertakings provided to the Company under
a deed of non-competition dated 23 February 2015. The
independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
status of compliance and confirmed that all the undertakings
under the deed of non-competition have been complied with
by the Controlling Shareholders and duly enforced since the
Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report.

Use of proceeds from the Listing

On 11 March 2015, the Company’s shares were listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. A total of 200,000,000
ordinary shares (before exercise of the over-allotment
option granted by the Company) with nominal value of
HK$0.01 each of the Company were issued at HK$2.08
per share. The net proceeds received by the Company
from the abovementioned global offering of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$358.4 million (without
taking into account the Shares that may be issued pursuant
to the exercise of the over-allotment option granted by
the Company and after deducting underwriting fees and
estimated expenses in connection with the global offering
of the Company). As the Shares were listed on the Stock
Exchange on 11 March 2015, the Company has not used any
net proceeds raised from the global offering of the Company
up to the date of this annual report. Such net proceeds are
intended to be applied in accordance with the proposed
applications as set out in the section headed “Future Plans
and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus.

Report of the Directors
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Events after the reporting period
Details of the significant events of the Group after the
reporting period are set out in note 38 to the financial

statements.
Auditors
Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment

as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Chairman

Hong Kong
27 March 2015
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Independent Auditors’ Report

s
EY =

To the shareholders of Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages
63 to 167 which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2014,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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Independent Auditors” Report
R LGl e

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated

financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
of the Group as at 31 December 2014, and of the Group’s
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

22/F, CITIC Tower, 1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central,
Hong Kong

27 March 2015

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

raBRREM2ENER
7175y =| ?E é@
Year ended 31 December 2014
HZE2014F12A31BLEFE
2014 2013
20144 20134
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T ARETIT AREBTIT
REVENUE WA 5 785,592 663,663
Cost of sales $HERK K (595,566) (463,588)
Gross profit S 190,026 200,075
Other income and gains E At A F W as 5 9,959 4,521
Selling and distribution costs HE R D KA (4,788) (2,796)
Administrative expenses THAX (27,183) (20,923)
Other expenses H 5 sz (1) (305)
Finance costs =N 6 (19,023) (42,267)
Share of profits of Associates A58 R B 4,948 3,285
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BR B A= A 7 153,938 141,590
Income tax expense PRSI X 10 (37,578) (35,098)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FE®RA 116,360 106,492
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AT &L EIEEERF
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Owners of the parent ﬂ%ﬁﬁ/\ 11 116,360 106,703
Non-controlling interests #T [ e 5 = (211)
116,360 106,492
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE UTELEIEFE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR 2H KRB :
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Owners of the parent UNGIET DN 116,360 106,703
Non-controlling interests 3ET [tz = (2171)
116,360 106,492
EARNINGS PER SHARE BAREBRISE AEWN
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY #SRZER
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT
Basic R
— For profit for the year (RMB) — FREF (AR®) 13 0.21 0.28
Diluted #E
— For profit for the year (RMB) — FREF (ARW) 13 0.21 0.28
Details of the dividends payable and proposed for the year ZA4F S EN KEHREFBERET SRR E128
are disclosed in note 12 to the financial statements. 7 o
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR R

31 December 2014
K2014F12A31H

2014 2013
20144 20134
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B aE ARETTT ARETTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M -~ RE MR 14 564,728 566,762
Prepaid land lease payments TEfT AR EFRIE 15 50,164 53,677
Investments in associates RELE N BIHIIRE 16 78,906 75,805
Deferred tax assets RIEFIEE B 18 26,728 23,647
Other non-current assets HEMIERBEE 19 2,839 2,486
723,365 722,377
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories yER< 1 20 5,814 6,943
Amounts due from construction FEWGER A R I8
contract customers 21 37,445 47,417
Trade and bills receivables B E ZERFRREE 22 56,475 57,466
Prepayments, deposits and BRI - e K
other receivables H fth e U Fh 18 19 14,112 23,643
Amounts due from other P Wi L th B8 3 75 SR IE
related parties 23 173 196,086
Pledged deposits EEAER 24 4,513 6,463
Cash and cash equivalents BeRIESEEY 24 125,377 69,808
243,909 407,826
CURRENT LIABILITIES nREBEE
Trade payables T E Z R 25 42,405 24,913
Other payables and accruals H b 3R IE R BT E A 26 72,557 68,812
Advances from customers FEREFHIE 144,095 120,505
Amount due to an other FEAT E Ath B 38 75 5K IE
related party 23 946 -
Amount due to the holding FERHEA% A Bl 3 IE
company 23 - 33,435
Deferred income IEAELT A 27 13,884 11,830
Tax payable e IR 27,614 26,120
Interest-bearing bank loans STRIEITER 28 - 499,000
301,501 784,615
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
A IO KR

31 December 2014

R2014F12831H

2014 2013
20144 20134
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T ARBTIT AREBTIT
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEEFE (57,592) (376,789)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT #AEERRBERE
LIABILITIES 665,773 345,588
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FEREBEE
Deferred income PRIELA 27 84,503 73,978
Interest-bearing bank loans FRIRITER 28 120,000 =
204,503 73,978
Net assets BEFE 461,270 271,610
EQUITY Ex
Equity attributable to owners FRAER AEEES
of the parent
Issued capital BEITARAR 29 98 62
Reserves s 30(a) 443,572 271,548
Proposed final dividend feie -GS 12 17,600 —
Total equity T AR 461,270 271,610
Director Director
EE EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 December 2014

BE2014F12 831 IEFE
Attributable to owners of the parent
BATRR AR
Statutory Proposed Non-
lssued  Merger  Capital  reserve  Retained final controlling
capital  reserve*  reserve* fund*  profits*  dividend Total ~interests Total equity
iy B
BRIRA aRER AXER  BRtr REEN KBRS it ks eEs
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTL ARETT ARMTR ARBTR ARMTR ARETR ARBTR ARMTR ARETR
Note 30a) Note 30(a) Note 30@@) ~ Note 12
W30 ME30@)  ME30@ M1
At1 January 2013 H013E181R S14499 11418 22959 206,587 o346 2387 385,850
Issue of shares ki 62 - - - - - 62 - 62
Profit and total comprehensive IR 2 EUE£E
income for the year - - - - 106,703 - 106,703 @11) 106,492
Acquisition of an equity interest B EERRIENBLF
of a subsidiary from a then MRAER
shareholder - (2,499) (225) - - - (2,724) (2,176) (4,900)
Deemed distribution to RIEMBEA LR
related party - - (5,894) - - - (5,894) - (5,694)
Dividends declared and paid ~ EERREERE = - - - (210,000) - (210,000) - (210,000)
Transfer from retained profits R E/REEF = = - 10778 (10,778) = = = =
At 31 December 2013and ~ W2013512831AK
1 January 2014 201451518 62 140,000 5,299 33,737 92,512 - 271,610 - 271,610
Issue of shares BTRG 36 - 309,675 - - - 309,711 - 309,711
Profit and total comprehensive ~ FEEFI k2 ARELE
income for the year = = - - 116,360 - 116,360 - 116,360
Capital contribution from the ~ ERAHE
holding company - - 932 - - - 932 - 932
Acquisition of an equity interest EERRRMEHELT
of a subsidiary from athen  EOFAER
shareholder - (21438) - - - - (21438) - (21438)
Dividends declared and paid ~ BERRIEE[RE - - - - (23,000 - (23,000 - (23,000
Proposed final 2014 dividend ~ E20145 R HR S = = - - (176000 17,600 - - -
Transfer from retained profits ~ EfBRERT = = = 11,750 (11,750) = = = =
At 31 December 2014 R2014%£12831R 96 (74,343) 315,900 45,487 156,522 17,600 461,270 - 461,270

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of  * R2014F12A31 0 - 2Z[#BHRE afEGFe
RMB443,572,000 in the consolidated statement of financial AR R AR S B AR 443,572,000
position as at 31 December 2014 (2013: RMB271,548,000). 7C (20134 = AE%271,548,000) °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERTRER

Year ended 31 December 2014

HZE2014F12A31BILFE
2014 2013
20144 20134
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T ARETIT AREBTIT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING E&EEFIEHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax BR A Bl Al 153,938 141,590
Adjustments for: RTHAE
Depreciation e 7 32,075 23,627
Amortisation of prepaid land TEAT 1+ 3070 & IR HE 8
lease payments 7 11,4415 1,284
Loss on disposal of items of HEME - KE K
property, plant and equipment RFIE B W EE 7 - 201
Gain on disposal of prepaid land HEFE[ L EFIAMN K
lease payments 7 (4,287) -
Fair value gain on equity FRBREATETIRSY
investments at fair value through BRI E A FE WS
profit or loss 7 = (1)
Amortisation of deferred income — JEZEUT A 844 27 (12,945) (11,045)
Foreign exchange gain AN E 7 (730) (575)
Bank interest income RITH B HA 5 (1,086) (2,683)
Finance costs EQEEJZZ]S 6 19,023 42,267
Share of profits and losses of: DEATREER :
Associates il (4,948) (3,285)
182,485 191,380
(Increase)/decrease in trade and FEUWE SRR
bills receivables Zig (i‘ﬂﬂ)/ﬂﬂ 991 (18,377)
(Increase)/decrease in amounts U ER A RR P FIE
due from construction contract (ij]l])/ﬂd\
customers 9,972 (16,831)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, BB ~ & R EAM
deposits and other receivables f”ﬁlmlﬁ (3gm),m 9,013 (16,979)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories 175 (3&0) F 1,129 (695)
Decrease in amounts due from THSZEWJF% & SRR
other related parties 1,787 230
Increase/(decrease) in trade JEE S BRI
payables 2, R ) 17,492 (23,136)
Increase/(decrease) in other E b sIE R
payables and accruals fEETE Mg M, Ofd) (1,523) 12,723
Increase in advances from TEUR % = SR IEIE AN
customers 23,590 7,211
Increase in deferred income PEFE U A ZE AN 25,524 23,425
Decrease in amounts due to other i1~ £ {th B 48 75 7k 18 il >
related parties = (25,224)
Cash generated from operations & & EEH1SIRE 270,460 133,727
Interest received 2 AE 817 396
Tax paid EANEAE (39,165) (30,443)
NET CASH FLOWS FROM EEBRERERETHE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 232,112 103,680
2014 FEH | #HEIRARBRNHDERA
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

,m Eﬁdimuiﬁ
Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F 128318 LFE

2014 2013
20144 20134
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BtaE AR¥BTFTT AREBT T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING BREZBHFMBHEERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, BEYE  BELXEER
plant and equipment (50,964) (97,726)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HE¥ZE « BFEK&EER
property, plant and equipment PG 5IR 22,940 272
Proceeds from disposal of prepaid HEREN LR ERE
land lease payments PSR 11,134 =
Purchase of prepaid land lease BB IEN + 0 0E
payments = (15,274)
Deregistration of a joint venture — FE$H& &3 = 14,942
Purchase of equity investments at & BB BBmHIEAFES K
fair value through profit or loss o) N = (2,000)
Proceeds from maturity of equity #E:@I8z51E A FEHIER
investments at fair value through  B&ZN% & B HA R P15 5008
profit or loss = 2,001
Dividends received from an B — S R RIRIAR S
associate 1,847 4,763
NET CASH FLOWS USED IN REZFHAREREFHR
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (15,043) (93,022)
CASH FLOWS FROM BMETBRERTAE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares BITIRD FTS RI8 279,160 62
Acquisition of equity interests = ?D.?H%Hxiﬂﬂzﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁj
of a subsidiary from then B AR AN R
shareholders (214,343) (4,900)
Decrease in pledged deposits EERF TR 1,950 74,114
Interest received from pledged BB EREFRAFE
deposits 269 2,287
Dividends paid BT E (23,000) (210,000)
Interest paid BEARFLE (20,386) (40,961)
New interest-bearing bank loans  #i&aT BERITER R EME R
and other borrowings 190,000 619,000
Repayment of interest-bearing bank{Ei& T BR1TE R K EAb{EK
loans and other borrowings (569,000) (734,270)
Repayment of loans from a BEREEER
related party = (33,716)
Decrease in amounts due from JREE LB b B 538 5 K IERK
other related parties 194,126 105,902
Increase in amounts due to the JE ASHH2E A% AR R SR TE A 1
Controlling Shareholders = 7,026
Increase in amounts due to the FERTZERR A B RIS AN
holding company - 33,435
Increase/(decrease) in amounts A E b B 5 FRIEE
due to other related parties R A) (276) 177,048
NET CASH FLOWS USED IN BMETBARESRERE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (161,500) (4,973)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mEREMER
Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F 128318 ILFE

2014 2013
20144 20134
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt & ARBTIT AR¥ET T
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND ReRESEEYEMNTFE
CASH EQUIVALENTS 55,569 5,685
Cash and cash equivalents at FONRERREEEY
beginning of year 69,808 64,123
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS S£ARANRERALSZEY
AT END OF YEAR 125,377 69,808
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Statement of Financial Position

BrEEAR R

31 December 2014
K2014F12A31H

2014 2013
201445 20134
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T ARBETIT ARETIT
NON-CURRENT ASSET ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—EMEARKIRE 17 8 8
CURRENT ASSET REEE
Amount due from a subsidiary FE U B A =) TR IE 23 310,774 33,488
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Amount due to the holding FE T HZERR A RIRKIE
company 23 = 33,435
Other payables H A FE A 5RIE 26 1,126 108
1,126 33,543
NET CURRENT ASSET/ REBEE (ARE) FHE
(LIABILITIES) 309,648 (55)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT MEERRBAR
LIABILITIES 309,656 (47)
Net assets BEFEE 309,656 (47)
EQUITY =
Issued capital BEITRA 29 98 62
Reserves i 30(b) 291,958 (109)
Proposed final dividend RN B 12 17,600 =
Total equity e A EE 309,656 (47)
Director Director
EBE =
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Notes to Financial Statements

Corporate Information

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 4 July 2013
as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law, Chapter 22 of the Cayman Islands.

The registered office address of the Company is Clifton
House, 75 Fort Street, P.O. Box 1350, Grand Cayman
KY1-1108, Cayman Islands.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding.

The principal business activities of the Group during
the year included the distribution and sale of piped
natural gas, the provision of natural gas transmission,
and acting as the main contractor of construction and
installation of gas pipelines in Mainland China.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
holding company of the Company is Fung Yu Holdings
Limited (“Fung Yu Holdings”), a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), and the ultimate
controlling shareholders of the Company are Mr. Su
Aping (B%F1¥) and Ms. Zhu Yaying (KIE%)
known as the “Controlling Shareholders”).

(together

The shares of the Company have been listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 11 March 2015.

B 75 R B

Year ended 31 December 2014
HZE2014F12A31BLEFE

HEER
HAlRaBRmERAR ([AAR]) R
BERESEHEEREE2ENRER2013
F7AAREREHETMNILBERR
BREEAF

AN R Al & it # F R ik AClifton
House, 75 Fort Street, P.O. Box 1350,
Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman
Islands °

ARRINEBEHRREER

FRAEENFEXHBRIERFE A
FERHEEBRAR - BERARH
K ERERRLEMRAEBHEE &K
B e

ARABEFRR ARANERAF
R—AEANREREBRIES ([RER XA
5 1) sz 892 FlFung Yu Holdings
Limited ([Fung Yu Holdings]) * 7
X A R AR5 R IR PR A AR ] 1 58 AR T R
TR (G [ERRR])

KATRMDE B2015F381TBEESR
BHMAERSMBERAR ([BRFAT]) =
RET o
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Notes to Financial Statements

B TR P 5
Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F 128318 LFE

2.1 Basis of Presentation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”), which comprise all standards
and interpretations approved by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”), and International
Accounting Standards (“lASs”) and Standing
Interpretations Committee interpretations approved
by the International Accounting Standards Committee
that remain in effect. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance relating to
the preparation of financial statements, which for this
financial year and the comparative period continue
to be those of the predecessor Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 32), in accordance with transitional and saving
arrangements for Part 9 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), “Accounts and Audit”, which
are set out in sections 76 to 87 of Schedule 11 to
that Ordinance. The financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for equity investments measured at fair value through
profit or loss. These financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the functional currency
of the Company and its subsidiaries, and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise

indicated.

The Group had net current liabilities of approximately
RMB57,592,000 as at 31 December 2014. Having taken
into account the cash flows from the operations and
the currently available banking facilities, the Directors
consider that it is appropriate to prepare the financial
statements on a going concern basis.
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2.1 Basis of Presentation (Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2014. The financial statements of
the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting
period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such

control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group

are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements
of control described in the accounting policy for
subsidiaries below. A change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted

for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill)
and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group’s share of components previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit
or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly

disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Notes to Financial Statements
WIS RR M T

Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F12A31B IEFEE
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Notes to Financial Statements

B TR P 5
Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F 128318 LFE

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures
The Group has adopted the following revised standards
and a new interpretation for the first time for the
current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to Investment Entities
IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and
IAS 27 (2011)

Amendments to IAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

Amendments to IAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures
for Non-Financial Assets

Amendments to IAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge
Accounting

IFRIC Interpretation 21 Levies

Amendment to [FRS 2 Definition of Vesting Condition’
included in Annual
Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle

Amendment to IFRS 3 Accounting for Contingent
included in Annual Consideration in a Business

Improvements Combination’
2010-2012 Cycle

L Effective from 1 July 2014
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (Continued)

The nature and the impact of each amendment and

interpretation is described below:

(a)

Amendments to IFRS 10 include a definition of an
investment entity and provide an exception to the
consolidation requirement for entities that meet
the definition of an investment entity. Investment
entities are required to account for subsidiaries
at fair value through profit or loss rather than
consolidate them. Consequential amendments
were made to IFRS 12 and IAS 27 (2011). The
amendments to IFRS 12 also set out the disclosure
requirements for investment entities. The
amendments have had no impact on the Group as
the Company does not qualify as an investment
entity as defined in IFRS 10.

The IAS 32 Amendments clarify the meaning of
“currently has a legally enforceable right to set
off” for offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities. The amendments also clarify the
application of the offsetting criteria in IAS 32 to
settlement systems (such as central clearing house
systems) which apply gross settlement mechanisms
that are not simultaneous. The amendments have
had no impact on the Group as the Group does

not have any offsetting arrangement.

Notes to Financial Statements
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Notes to Financial Statements

B TR P 5
Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F 128318 LFE

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (Continued)

(c)

The IAS 36 Amendments remove the unintended
disclosure requirement made by IFRS 13 on
the recoverable amount of a cash-generating
unit which is not impaired. In addition, the
amendments require the disclosure of the
recoverable amounts for the assets or cash-
generating units for which an impairment loss has
been recognised or reversed during the reporting
period, and expand the disclosure requirements
regarding the fair value measurement for these
assets or units if their recoverable amounts are
based on fair value less costs of disposal. The
amendments have had no impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group.

The IAS 39 Amendments provide an exception to
the requirement of discontinuing hedge accounting
in situations where over-the-counter derivatives
designated in hedging relationships are directly
or indirectly, novated to a central counterparty
as a consequence of laws or regulations, or
the introduction of laws or regulations. For
continuance of hedge accounting under this
exception, all of the following criteria must be
met: (i) the novations must arise as a consequence
of laws or regulations, or the introduction of
laws or regulations; (ii) the parties to the hedging
instrument agree that one or more clearing
counterparties replace their original counterparty
to become the new counterparty to each of the
parties; and (iii) the novations do not result in
changes to the terms of the original derivative
other than changes directly attributable to the
change in counterparty to achieve clearing. The
amendments have had no impact on the Group as
the Group has not novated any derivatives during
the current and prior years.
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2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and
Disclosures (Continued)

(e)

IFRIC Interpretation 21 clarifies that an entity
recognises a liability for a levy when the activity
that triggers payment, as identified by the relevant
legislation, occurs. The interpretation also clarifies
that a levy liability is accrued progressively only
if the activity that triggers payment occurs over a
period of time, in accordance with the relevant
legislation. For a levy that is triggered upon
reaching a minimum threshold, the interpretation
clarifies that no liability should be recognised
before the specified minimum threshold is
reached. The interpretation has had no impact on
the Group as the Group applied, in prior years,
the recognition principles under IAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets which
for the levies incurred by the Group are consistent
with the requirements of IFRIC Interpretation 21.

The IFRS 2 Amendment clarifies various issues
relating to the definitions of performance and
service conditions which are vesting conditions,
including (i) a performance condition must contain
a service condition; (ii) a performance target
must be met while the counterparty is rendering
service; (iii) a performance target may relate to
the operations or activities of an entity, or to
those of another entity in the same group; (iv) a
performance condition may be a market or non-
market condition; and (v) if the counterparty,
regardless of the reason, ceases to provide service
during the vesting period, the service condition is
not satisfied. The amendment has had no impact

on the Group.

The IFRS 3 Amendment clarifies that contingent
consideration arrangements arising from a
business combination that are not classified as
equity should be subsequently measured at fair
value through profit or loss whether or not they
fall within the scope of IFRS 9 or IAS 39. The
amendment has had no impact on the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B TR P 5
Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F 128318 LFE

2.3 New and Revised IFRSs and New Disclosure 2.3 & R ERANBY T ET 2 AR 1S 5T B BR B

A
Requirements under the Hong Kong BHEEAURERQTGRLT
Companies Ordinance Not Yet Adopted IR ERE
The Group has not applied the following new and AREBUWERZENEREXERAATE
revised IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet M (8 R AT 5T RSB T BIBR B
effective, in these financial statements. TFEERE AR -
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments* BIRB 5 mE ERIE 95, 2/ T A
Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets BRI BRELEREI0 REZLRBED
and IAS 28 (2011) between an Investor and its SR BB e R E T A=y N
Associate or Joint Venture? 285% (20114) MfE R & & 3
al RA?
Amendments to IFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of 30 2% B 75 < e 22 B WERA & ZHE
Interests in Joint Operation? F115AERT féf i B 127
IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts® B B B s 3 o 22 A EERERA’
F14%
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with BB B s R £ A EF& RNz
Customers? F155
Amendments to IAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants? BlRastERIF165 R BF - £EMEY?
and 1AS 41 RERTERIEA1R
BT
Amendments to IAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable B e ERE165E N HTBZTE RS
and IAS 38 Methods of Depreciation and BRI FE385E  HHEHEE
Amortisation? MER]
Amendments to IAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee B e ERE195%  REEfd : E
Contributions’ E!']f/ pT BHH
Amendments to IAS 27 Equity Method in Separate RS EAE2759 B BHKAE
2011) Financial Statements? (20114F) RIBR] 72
Annual Improvements  Amendments to a number of IFRSs' 2010FF2012F 5  HEBERRSER
2010-2012 Cycle FEN#E SRR
Annual Improvements  Amendments to a number of IFRSs' 2011 EZE2013F 5 HEBEBRRHER
2011-2013 Cycle FEN#E SRR
Annual Improvements ~ Amendments to a number of IFRSs? 2012FF2014F 5 HEERRSER
2012-2014 Cycle ¢F it SEAIMEET?
Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative’ REETERE 15 REES
El’]fa HT
Amendments to IFRS 10, Investment Entities: Applying the BB S mEERIE10 REFTE  EHE
IFRS 12 and IAS 28 Consolidation Exception? o BBRMBmEE e

BI5E125% R B @5t
ﬁm 5285k B ER]

t Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 1 R20144F7 A1 8 sk 2 1% 5 18 A F E 5
2014 fE A2

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 2 201651 A1 H sk 2 & 168 F & 5
January 2016 A2

E Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 3 201741 A1H 3 2 1& F 16 &) F £ 8
January 2017 i AR 2R

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 4 FR2018F1A1B s 2 BB KIS EH
January 2018 fE AR

3 Effective for an entity that first adopts IFRSs for its annual S HBERERMBEBETBREENNERZR
financial statements beginning on or after 1 January 2016 201651 A1H Sk 2 % F 6 8 F 5 8 75
and therefore is not applicable to the Group WMERAEN - AT EARAEE
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2.3 New and Revised IFRSs and New Disclosure

Requirements Under The Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance Not Yet Adopted
(Continued)

In addition, the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) will affect the presentation and disclosure
of certain information in the consolidated financial
statements for the year ending 31 December 2015. The
Group is in the process of making an assessment of the

impact of these changes.

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected
to be applicable to the Group is as follows:

In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9,
bringing together all phases of the financial instruments
project to replace IAS 39 and all previous versions of
IFRS 9. The standard introduces new requirements for
classification and measurement, impairment and hedge
accounting. The Group expects to adopt IFRS 9 from
1 January 2018. The Group expects that the adoption
of IFRS 9 will have an impact on the classification and
measurement of the Group’s financial assets. Further
information about the impact will be available nearer
the implementation date of the standard.

The amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (2011) address
an inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS
10 and in IAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require
a full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For
a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction
is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that
associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be
applied prospectively. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 January 2016.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B TR P 5
Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F 128318 LFE

2.3 New and Revised IFRSs and New Disclosure

Requirements Under The Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance Not Yet Adopted
(Continued)

The amendments to IFRS 11 require that an acquirer of
an interest in a joint operation in which the activity of
the joint operation constitutes a business must apply the
relevant principles for business combinations in IFRS
3. The amendments also clarify that a previously held
interest in a joint operation is not remeasured on the
acquisition of an additional interest in the same joint
operation while joint control is retained. In addition, a
scope exclusion has been added to IFRS 11 to specify
that the amendments do not apply when the parties
sharing joint control, including the reporting entity, are
under common control of the same ultimate controlling
party. The amendments apply to both the acquisition
of the initial interest in a joint operation and the
acquisition of any additional interests in the same joint
operation. The amendments are not expected to have
any impact on the financial position or performance of
the Group upon adoption on 1 January 2016.

IFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model that will
apply to revenue arising from contracts with customers.
Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which an entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
goods or services to a customer. The principles in IFRS
15 provide a more structured approach for measuring
and recognising revenue. The standard also introduces
extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in
contract asset and liability account balances between
periods and key judgements and estimates. The
standard will supersede all current revenue recognition
requirements under IFRSs. The Group expects to adopt
IFRS 15 on 1 January 2017 and is currently assessing
the impact of IFRS 15 upon adoption.
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2.3 New and Revised IFRSs and New Disclosure

Requirements Under The Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance Not Yet Adopted
(Continued)

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 clarify the principle
in IAS 16 and IAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattern of
economic benefits that are generated from operating
business (of which the asset is part) rather than the
economic benefits that are consumed through the use of
the asset. As a result, a revenue-based method cannot
be used to depreciate property, plant and equipment
and may only be used in very limited circumstances
to amortise intangible assets. The amendments are to
be applied prospectively. The amendments are not
expected to have any impact on the financial position
or performance of the Group upon adoption on 1
January 2016 as the Group has not used a revenue-
based method for the calculation of depreciation of its
non-current assets.

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over

an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

Notes to Financial Statements
WIS RR M T

Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F12A31B IEFEE

2.3 o AR BRAR B R B AZE 5T Bl R B

BHELUUAR BB QTRGIT
M HERE (&)

B e R E 165t MBI 2T &R E
387JTE’H/ FI RSB g s E RIS 1658
BFR & ERIE385 A REAI - Blfas
Jiﬁﬂéi““*%ﬁ%(ﬁﬂPéfF —#81n) A
ELXMKENSEN - MTAREBER
%“Fﬁﬁ%%%?ﬁ’]?&/ﬁﬂ/\"ltt W%
RRARITEDR - BERRE - ME
TE?E%EEEW%RT%W%&%%R%
E o R FEFTRALARIER - ANAE
B EFERWS AT EEIERBEEN
TE  REFETN2016F1A1BE
Rz - EETSHAEENT BN
YEEEEEATE -

24 FTESHBEBE

B 2 F]
MEBARIEANARHEE BRI ERE
HENER (EEEBILEER) - B4X%
BB RHE2EAEMEAREHRA
5 Ol e AR S AE R - WRESAIR B &
REMEREHIZELRSH (ABEEE
MAMEARREERN ERFEEREHRN
HEES)  BRRAKEHEAREY
REIE I -

EARFERSIMEEEINEREHR
BF B EREIALRNE - ARER
AHEERHREHRBEREIRS
BFRIEHEREERIER - 81 :

(a) HEZREHREMEZERSE AN
BRIRE
2014 FFH | HAMRBHARA

81



82
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(¢) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s profit or loss to the extent of dividends
received and receivable. The Company’s investments
in subsidiaries that are not classified as held for sale
in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations are stated at cost less

any impairment losses.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a
long term interest of generally not less than 20% of the
equity voting rights and over which it is in a position to
exercise significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or

joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require the unanimous

consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at the Group’s share of net assets under the
equity method of accounting, less any impairment

losses.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of associates and joint
ventures is included in profit or loss. In addition,
when there has been a change recognised directly in
the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group
recognises its share of any changes, when applicable,
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates or joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments
in the associates or joint ventures, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included
as part of the Group’s investments in associates or joint

ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest
is not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues
to be accounted for under the equity method. In all
other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the
associate or joint control over the joint venture, the
Group measures and recognises any retained investment
at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of
significant influence or joint control and the fair value
of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal

is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of associates and joint ventures are
included in the Company’s profit or loss to the extent
of dividends received and receivable. The Company’s
investments in associates and joint ventures are treated
as non-current assets and are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture
is classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in

accordance with IFRS 5.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity investments at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in
the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset
or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the

fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than deferred tax assets, inventories, construction
contract assets, financial assets and non-current assets/
a disposal group classified as held for sale), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount
is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the

asset belongs.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)
An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation)
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss
is credited to profit or loss in the period in which it
arises (only if there are revalued assets in the financial
statements), unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or:

(b)

the party is a person or close member of that
person’s family and that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group.

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a); and

=

(vii) a person identified in (a) (i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity

(or of a parent of the entity).
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location

for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss
in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure
for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to
be replaced at intervals, the Group recognised such
parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful

life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are

as follows:

Buildings BT

Gas pipelines MREE
Plant and machinery = s

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment xR

JTED

Motor vehicles
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss
and other comprehensive income in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales

proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents gas station
structures, machinery, gas pipelines and other property,
plant and equipment under construction which are
stated at cost less any impairment losses, and are
not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for use.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or
contains, a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception date. The arrangement
is assessed for whether fulfilment of the arrangement
is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets
or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or
assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an
arrangement.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable
under operating leases net of any incentives received
from the lessor are charged to profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
loans and receivables. When all financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial assets, except in the case of financial
assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place (regular
way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the
date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets

depends on their classification as described as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments as defined by IAS 39.
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HE2014F 128318 LFE

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with positive net changes in fair value presented
as other income and gains and negative net changes
in fair value presented as other expenses in profit or
loss. These net fair value changes do not include any
dividends or interest earned on these financial assets,
which are recognised in accordance with the policies
set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as
at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the
date of initial recognition and only if the criteria in IAS
39 are satisfied.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. After initial measurement,
such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less
any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included
other income and gains in the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income. The loss arising
from impairment is recognised in profit or loss in other

expenses.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)

when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent
it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of
the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues
to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of
the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case,
the Group also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and

obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. An
impairment exists if one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset have an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or the group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may
include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors
is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether impairment exists individually
for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are
not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not yet
been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest

rate computed at initial recognition).
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through
the use of an allowance account and the amount of
the impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.
Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the
purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance are
written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realised or has
been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased
or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to

profit or loss.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,

as loans and borrowings, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables,
other payables and accruals, interest-bearing bank
borrowings and amounts due to other related parties.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. The
Group measures the financial guarantee contract at its
fair value at the end of the reporting period.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or
expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is

recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the

assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average method and, in the case of finished goods,
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Construction contracts

The balances of construction contracts represent the
net amount of construction costs incurred to date and
recognised profits (less recognised losses), less progress

billings and provision for foreseeable contract losses.

Construction contract costs are valued at actual cost,
and comprise direct materials, direct labour costs,
construction machinery costs, other direct costs and
construction overheads. For an individual contract
whose costs incurred to date plus recognised profits
(less recognised losses) exceed progress billings, the
gross amount due from customers for contract work
in inventories is presented as amounts due from
construction contract customers. For an individual
contract whose progress billings exceed costs incurred
to date plus recognised profits (less recognised losses),
the gross amount due to customers for contract work in
advance from customers is presented as advances from

customers.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Construction contracts (Continued)

The Group estimates total contract costs based on
actual circumstances for each contract. Provision for
foreseeable contract losses will be recognised in profit
or loss where total estimated contract costs exceed total

contract revenue.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial
position comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in

profit or loss.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current period
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and
practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in

the foreseeable future.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carry forward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carry forward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which

the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it
has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset
to be recovered.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income to match the grant on a
systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which
it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is
credited to a deferred income account and is released
to profit or loss over the expected useful life of the
relevant asset by equal annual instalments or deducted
from the carrying amount of the asset and released to
profit or loss by way of a reduced depreciation charge.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following

bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective
control over the goods sold;

(b) from construction contracts, on the percentage
of completion basis, as further explained in the
accounting policy for “Construction contracts”
above;

(c) from the rendering of services, when the services
are rendered;

(d) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms; and

(e) interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument
or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net

carrying amount of the financial asset.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Employee benefits

Pension scheme

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute 20% to 22% of their payroll costs to the
central pension scheme. The contributions are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Retirement benefits

As stipulated by PRC regulations, subsidiaries in
Mainland China participate in a defined contribution
retirement scheme. All formal employees are entitled
to an annual pension equal to a fixed proportion of the
average basic salary amount of their last employment
at their retirement date. Subsidiaries in Mainland China
are required to make contributions to the local social
security bureau at rates of 20% to 22% of the average
basic salaries of the employees under the employment
of subsidiaries in Mainland China to whom the defined
contribution retirement plan is applicable. Subsidiaries
in Mainland China have no obligations for the payment
of pension benefits beyond the annual contributions to
the local social security bureau as set out above.

Accommodation benefits

According to the relevant PRC rules and regulations,
the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are
each required to make contributions, which are in
proportion to the salaries and wages of the employees,
to an accommodation fund administered by the Public
Accumulation Funds Administration Centre. There are
no further obligations on the part of the subsidiaries
in Mainland China, except for the contributions to the
accommodation fund.
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24 TEETEHEHE (H)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of

funds.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified
as a separate allocation of retained profits within
the equity section of the consolidated statement of
financial position, until they have been approved by
the shareholders in a general meeting. When these
dividends have been approved by the shareholders and
declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability
when they are proposed and declared.
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2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), which is the Group’s and the Company’s
presentation and functional currency because the
Group’s principal operations are carried out in
Mainland China. Each entity in the Group determines
its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the functional currency rates of
exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. All
differences are taken to profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on retranslation
of a non-monetary item is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair
value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the
item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).
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Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or
liabilities affected in future periods.

Judgement

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgement, apart from those involving estimations,
which has the most significant effect on the amounts

recognised in the financial statements:

Withholding tax arising from the distribution of
dividends

The Group’s determination, as to whether to accrue
withholding taxes arising from the distributions of
dividends by certain subsidiaries according to the
relevant tax rules enacted in the jurisdictions, is
subject to judgement on the plan of the distribution of
dividends.
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Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other

key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting

date, that have a significant risk of causing a material

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next period, are described below.

(i)

(ii)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives
and related depreciation charges for its property,
plant and equipment. This estimate is based on
the historical experience of the actual useful lives
of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. It could change significantly as
a result of technical innovations, or competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Management will increase the depreciation
charge where useful lives are less than previously
estimated lives, or it will write off or write down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned or sold. The useful lives of
property, plant and equipment are disclosed in
note 2 to the financial statements.

Impairment of trade receivables

The provision policy for impairment of trade
receivables is based on ongoing evaluation of
the collectability and ageing analysis of the
outstanding receivables and on management’s
judgement. A considerable amount of judgement
is required in assessing the ultimate realisation of
those receivables, including the creditworthiness
and the past collection history of each customer.
If the financial conditions of the customers of
the Group were to deteriorate, resulting in an
impairment of their ability to make payments,
additional allowances might be required. The
carrying amount of trade receivables as at
31 December 2014 was RMB54,489,000 (31
December 2013: RMB57,466,000). Further
details are contained in note 22 to the financial

statements.
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3. Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences are recognised as management
considers that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the
temporary tax differences or tax losses can be
utilised. Where the expectations are different
from the original estimates, such differences will
impact the recognition of deferred tax assets
and deferred tax in the periods in which such
estimates have been changed. The carrying amount
of deferred tax assets carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December
2014 was RMB26,728,000 (31 December 2013:
RMB23,647,000), details of which are set out in
note 18 to the financial statements.

Estimation of the amortisation period of connection
fee recorded as deferred income

The Group receives fees from customers in advance
in exchange for the connection of gas pipelines
to the urban natural gas pipeline network. These
fees are received upfront and gradually amortised.
The Group determines the estimated amortisation
period of ten years for its revenue recognition.
This estimate is based on the Group’s historical
experience of the actual service period and the
strength of the Group’s business relationship
with each individual customer. It could differ
significantly based on the customer’s profile,
expected term of the relationship and the strength
of the customer’s business relationship established
with the Group. Generally, amortisation is
calculated on the straight-line basis for ten years.
The carrying amount of deferred income carried
in the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2014 was RMB88,490,000(31
December 2013: RMB85,808,000), details of
which are set out in note 27 to the financial

statements.
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Segment Information

For management purposes, the Group has only one
reportable operating segment which is natural gas
operation. Since this is the only reportable operating
segment of the Group, no further operating segment

analysis thereof is presented.

Geographical information

Geographical information is not presented since all
of the Group’s revenue from external customers is
generated in Mainland China and all of the non-current
assets of the Group are located in Mainland China. The
non-current asset information is based on the location
of the assets and excludes financial instruments and
deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers

No information about major customers is presented as
no single customer contributed over 10% of the Group’s
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2014.

The Directors have only little information about
whether a group of entities are under common control;
and therefore such assessment is made to the directors’
best knowledge. Especially, such assessment is not
made for those entities which might solely be under
the ultimate common control of the government after
taking into account the economic integration among
such entities in the economic environment with a large
number of state-owned entities in Mainland China.
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L ONRES L PN L&

WATRNAEBHERTE  RRCER
mEERFE (MRERE BEH5HHRK
ERBAKMERE (ER)) + ki
HER &R A REMBDAE RKES

5. Revenue, Other Income and Gains 5.
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover,
represents the net invoiced value of goods sold after
allowances for returns, trade discounts and various
types of government surcharges, where applicable;

and an appropriate proportion of contract revenue

of construction contracts and service contracts, net

of value-added tax, business tax and government

surcharges.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue, other income and

(FNERIBE - 2B LBUFHNE) -

AEBEOBA ~ E A K s o A &

gains is as follows: AR -
Group REE
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT
Revenue WA
Sale of natural gas SHERAR 682,113 544,029
Construction and connection of gas EREEAMRTE S
pipelines 96,521 114,753
Transmission of natural gas B KRR 9,673 8,426
Others Hih 3,478 2,470
791,785 669,678
Less: Government surcharges B BURH & (6,193) (6,015)
785,592 663,663
Other income and gains Hfth e A & Uz
Bank interest income RITMBHA 1,086 2,683
Foreign exchange gain RN 740 575
Government grant T B 83 -
Gain on disposal of prepaid land lease & 7B i EFHRE K &=
payments 4,287 -
Others Hith 3,763 1,263
9,959 4,521
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Finance Costs

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:
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6. RLE R

BMEKANDITESIT -

Group rEE
2014 2013
2014% 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETTT ARETTT
Interest on interest-bearing bank loans AR FF ABEEED
and other borrowings wholly FFRRITERK
repayable within five years H A 8 SR F S 18,948 42,045
Others HAh 75 222
19,023 42,267

Profit Before Tax

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

7. BRBUATAF

A& R BADE M YR (GE

(crediting): A)
Group AEH
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETTT AREFTT

Cost of inventories sold HEGTERA 560,533 436,427

Employee benefit expense (excluding EE®BFIFX
Directors’ remuneration as set out (B IEM 8P HY
in note 8): EEWE) -

Wages and salaries IENH® 6,539 5,218
Pension scheme contributions RINESETEIER 544 526
Social security contributions and IR ?ﬁ(&{f}%%mﬂ

accommodation benefits 580 494

Auditors’ remuneration ZE A B & 2,619 2,155

Loss on disposal of items of property,  HEWE -« BEKL
plant and equipment REIEE EE = 201

Gain on disposal of prepaid land lease &8 L EFIB
payments (note 5) ez (FRES) (4,287) -

Foreign exchange gain PE 5 Wi e (730) (575)

Depreciation (note 14) e (Fizk14) 32,075 23,627

Fair value gain on equity investments at # @ E iz A FETER
fair value through profit or loss AN E R FERKE - (1)

Amortisation of prepaid land lease Bt LA E KA
payments (note 15) ey (P7E15) 1,445 1,284
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8. Directors’ Remuneration 8. EEME
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the BiE EHMBAEEBSARIKNE22E
year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules and section Mi&R115781& - K2ZEFIE B R A&
78 of Schedule 11 to the Hong Kong Companies FNEFI61E BEFAMNESTRE
Ordinance (Cap. 622), with reference to section 161 ETBRABNMESWT ¢

of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance

(Cap. 32), is as follows:

Group REE
2014 2013
2014% 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FTTT ARETFTT
Fees i - -
Other emoluments: Btz -
Salaries, allowances and benefits Fe  REREDNR
in kind 485 50
Discretionary bonuses BYIBTEAL -
Pension scheme contributions RIKS IR = =
485 50
(@) Independent non-executive directors (a) BIAFEHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive RERXMN T EBILIERITEEH
directors during the year were as follows: WEWT :
2014 2013
20144 201345
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETTT AREFTT
Mr. Zhou Qingzu BB E = =
Mr. He Junjie Bk a - -
Mr. Luk Wai Keung PEfRoR A& = -
There were no other emoluments payable to the RER - BEEMNBUIFATES
independent non-executive directors during the REAMEE (20134F : &) o

year (2013: Nil).
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8. Directors’ Remuneration (Continued) 8. EEME (&)
(b) Executive directors, a non-executive (b) MITESE -~ FHTES
director
Salaries,

allowances Pension
and benefits Discretionary scheme

Fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
e 2R il e

we REDS MiETEAL STEIHR CEH)

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETE ARBTT ARETn ARETE ARETR

Year ended 31 December #Z2014&

2014 12831HILEE
Executive directors: HITES :
— Mr. Su Aping — BT R - 211 - - 21
~ Ms. Zhu Yaying - RpERZL - 93 - - 93
— Mr. Du Shaozhou - HARLE - 181 = = 181
- 485 - - 485
A non-executive director: FHITES :
- Mr. Xu Lei —HELE = - - - -
_ 485 - - 485
Year ended 31 December #Z2013&
2013 12831HILEE
Executive directors: HITES :
— Mr. Su Aping — BRI - 50 - - 50
- Ms. Zhu Yaying —REETT . . _ _ _
- 50 - - 50
There was no arrangement under which a Director RENR » WEIT S (ERZHE AL
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration EZNEXRBREEANE -

during the year.
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9. Five Highest Paid Employees

9. HIEREFMES

The five highest paid employees during the year

included two directors (2013: one director), details of

whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details

of the remuneration for the year of the remaining three

(2013: four) highest paid employees who are neither

a director nor chief executive of the Company are as

follows:

FR AEHE=THEES (BEMEE
£ (013F : —BEZF)) MewFEH
REXKEES - R - B T=4 (2013
F:R) WEARRESTHEEZITHR
ABHESHHESHSHFRBOT

2014 2013
201445 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTTT AREFIT

Salaries, allowances and benefits e EBNEYF
in kind 1,661 310
Discretionary bonuses IS TEAL = =
Pension scheme contributions RIREF 8K = 27
1,661 337

The number of non-Director, highest paid employees

whose remuneration fell within the following band is as

follows:

FEEESTMEENMES N TIATHA
R ASIT -

2014 2013
20144 20134
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 2%1,000,0005 7T 3 4
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10. Income Tax

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis
on profits arising in or derived from the jurisdictions
in which members of the Group are domiciled and
operate.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands, the Company is not subject to any income tax

in that jurisdiction.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made
as the Group had no assessable profits derived from or
earned in Hong Kong during the year.

The provision for Mainland China current income tax is
based on the statutory rate of 25% (2013: 25%) of the
assessable profits of the PRC subsidiaries of the Group
as determined in accordance with the PRC Corporate
Income Tax Law which was approved and became
effective on 1 January 2008 (the “New Corporate

Income Tax Law”).

The major components of income tax expense are as
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follows:
Group NEH
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBEFIT AREFIT
Current tax: BNEATRIA -
Income tax in the PRC for the year FAR TSR 40,659 37,552
Deferred tax (note 18) EERIA (FIFE18) (3,081) (2,454)
Total tax charge for the year FRNHREBEASTH 37,578 35,098
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10. Income Tax (Continued)

11.

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdiction in

which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries

10. FRB8% (&)

el NN DS & N Tl = PN
it P Rl AR B A R AT E A BR B AT
AT SRR SR ERHERAEN

are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax HIERTMEEEDT -
rate is as follows:
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTTT ARBT T
Profit before tax & Bt B a1 153,938 141,590
Notional tax on profit before tax, BREAEBEFE
calculated at the statutory tax rate I R ] 38,485 35,398
Expenses not deductible for tax TRINBF 31 170
Tax losses not recognised RERTIEE R 270 322
Profits and losses attributable to FE(GEE &R R
associates (1,208) (792)
Total tax charge recognised ERERMIER S 25 37,578 35,098

The share of tax attributable to associates amounting
to RMB1,909,000 (2013: RMB1,159,000) is included
in “Share of profits and losses of associates” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.

Profit Attributable to Owners of the Parent
The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the
parent for the year ended 31 December 2014 includes
a loss of RMB940,000 (2013: RMB109,000) which
has been dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company (note 30(b)).
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12. Dividends

On 27 March 2015, the board of directors of the
Company resolved to propose a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2014 of RMB0.022 per
ordinary share (2013: nil), subject to the approval by
the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general

meeting of the Company.
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12. RE

M2015F3A27H " A AR EEZ &
REFHIREEE2014F12A318 IEF
ERAKREESREBRAREK0.0227T
(20135 : &) - HAGFRRERAQF]
BN RITHRRBERE EHEFAE

(<]

Ju

2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF T ARETF T
Proposed final - RMB0.022 (2013: nil) EZAREKE —
per ordinary share R E R A RE0.0227T
(20134 : &) 17,600 -

The dividend declared by the Company’s subsidiary to
its then shareholders during the year was as follows:

FA - ARBMMEB QR REERAK
FIREREMT

2014 2013
201445 20134

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT ARBFT

Special dividend 5 Bl AR B 23,000 210,000

Special dividends of RMB210,000,000 and
RMB23,000,000 proposed by the Board of Directors
of Taicang Natural Gas to its then shareholders
were approved on 1 July 2013 and 26 May 2014,
respectively.

ARERARESSEZAAEZTRORK
R HF R AR S A K #210,000,0007T
& A R ¥23,000,0007T @ I 2 2 57
20137 A1H K2014F58268 % it
/E o
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B TR P 5
Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F 128318 LFE

13. Earnings Per Share

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount
is based on the profit for the year attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the parent, and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 549,218,471
(2013: 377,442,001) in issue during the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares

in issue during the year.

13. BRER

BREABFTRES AR L BRER
EABEFERNENREFEADETERR
DN #E 15 8549,218,4710% (20134 :
377,442,0010%) 51 & -

o

$§,‘% RERILED BEITMEEEEDN
i)
=]

Tﬁd
%

The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per ERERNREERF L AT EELT
share are based on: g
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTTT AREBT T
Earnings 2R
Profit attributable to ordinary equity REEFRERR L
holders of the parent, used in the BRREBRERA A
basic earnings per share calculation FE(E R F 116,360 106,703
Number of shares
iahar 4=
2014 2013
20144 20134
Shares gy
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ f{EstE iﬂx%$7%ﬂ9’]
shares in issue during the year used FAEBETE
in the basic earning per share InHEF 98
calculation 549,218,471 377,442,001

The weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue during the years ended 31 December 2014 and
2013 used in the basic earnings per share calculation
is determined on the assumption that the 7,800,000
and 12,399,256 ordinary shares with a par value
of HK$0.01 each issued in 2013 and 2014 and the
587,600,744 shares with a par value of HK$0.01 each
issued in connection with the capitalisation of the
share premium account arising from the listing of the
Company on 11 March 2015 had been in issue since 1
January 2013.
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Notes to Financial Statements
WIS RR M T

Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F 128318 IEEE

14. Property, Plant and Equipment 14. 1% - BERRE

Group REE
Furniture,
fixtures
Gas  Plantand  and office Motor Construction
Buildings  pipelines  machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
il XER
BF MREE BERESE BAERE AE HRIR @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARKTRT ARBTR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR
Cost: A
At 1 January 2013 R2013F1A18 51,008 281,343 22,403 631 5,347 188,386 549,118
Additions NE 2,970 964 867 148 344 98,684 103,977
Transfers R 146,298 108,875 14,192 - - (269,365) -
Disposals HE - - - - (590) - (590)
At 31 December 2013 #2013F12A318 &
and 1 January 2014 2014F1R18 200,276 391,182 37,462 779 5,101 17,705 652,505
Additions NE 1,728 - - 162 2,956 48,135 52,981
Transfers B 2,767 14,240 - 2,092 - (19,099) -
Disposals HeE (27,402) = = = = = (27,402)
At 31 December 2014 #2014£12 318 177369 405,422 37,462 3,033 8,057 46,741 678,084
Accumulated RFE
depreciation:
At 1 January 2013 m2013F1A18 11,128 42,580 6,564 428 1,533 - 62,233
Charge for the year FRHAY 3,064 17,596 2,386 81 500 = 23,627
Disposals L& - - - - (117) - (117)
At31 December 2013 120135 12A31A &
and 1 January 2014 2014%1 4318 14,192 60,176 8,950 509 1,916 - 85,743
Charge for the year FRRY 6,192 21,783 3,182 353 565 = 32,075
Disposals He (4,462) = = = = = (4,462)
At 31 December 2014 722014128318 15,922 81,959 12,132 862 2,481 - 113,356
Net carrying amount: SR :
At 31 December 2013 72201312 331H 186,084 331,006 28,512 270 3,185 17,705 566,762
At 31 December 2014 72014%F12A31H 161,447 323,463 25,330 2,171 5,576 46,741 564,728
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Notes to Financial Statements

B TR P 5
Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F 128318 LFE

14. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 14. Y% - BERRE (&)

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had not obtained AEBETE AR2013F12A31HEREE
the certificates of the buildings with a net carrying FEAARE22 539,000t EFES
amount of RMB22,539,000, which were subsequently BE MAEPEFEECDREZR20145F
disposed of during the year ended 31 December 2014. 12A31BIEFERNEE -

The net book values of property, plant and equipment RERTASE R BIR1TE R M
pledged as security for interest-bearing bank loans VI - WEMERENREFENT

granted to the Group are as follows:

2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREBFT
Guarantee (note 28) R (HeE28) 130,319 251,257
15. Prepaid Land Lease Payments 15. B L A ERIE
Group rEE
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ETFT ARBTF T
Cost: A :
At beginning of year F4] 59,356 32,582
Additions during the year FARNE - 26,774
Disposals during the year FRHE (2,808) -
At end of year FR 56,548 59,356
Accumulated amortisation: Rty -
At beginning of year F 1) 4,205 2,921
Amortisation during the year FNHEH A4S 1,284
Disposals during the year FALE (575) -
At end of year FR 5,075 4,205
Net carrying amount at end of year FAROREFE 51,473 55,151
Current portion, included in BNEAER Lty - BIETANFIA
prepayments, deposits and other BE REA R IR
receivables (1,309) (1,474)
Non-current portion JEBNHAER 50,164 53,677
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15.

16.

Prepaid Land Lease Payments (Continued)
All of the Group’s leasehold lands are held under long-

term leases and are situated in Mainland China.

As at 31 December 2014, certain of the Group’s prepaid
land lease payments with an aggregate net carrying
amount of RMB4,522,000 (2013: RMB6,968,000) was
pledged to banks to secure the borrowings granted to
the Group (note 28).

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had not obtained
ownership certificates of certain buildings with a net
carrying amount of RMB2,877,000, and the ownership
certificates were subsequently obtained by 23 October
2014.

15.

Notes to Financial Statements
WIS RR M T

Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F12A31B IEFEE

BT EERE (&)
AEBOARE LIS ARBELD -
A2 Hfrish BNt -

M2014512A318 - AEERKREF
BEA AR®45220007T (20134 : A
K %6,968,0007T) By & T B L H#b 78
ENERER TASEEFRNRITER
(PffzE28) °

20135128318 AEE H R
HFEAARE2,877,0000H) & T2
FREMEREE  MASEEZER
2014F 1023 AEVSZEFMBEREE -

Investments in Associates 16. REFE R TMIRE
Group AEH
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
Share of net assets PIEEEFE 78,906 75,805

2014 FER | HARRBRMNOERDA]

121



Notes to Financial Statements

B TR P 5
Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F 128318 LFE

16. Investments in Associates (Continued) 16. REEE QN RIMNKRE (B)
(a) Particulars of the associates are as follows: (@) BtEARMEEBOT :

Percentage of

FEBE D
Nominal value  Place of
of paid-up/  registration and Voting ~ Ownership
Name of company registered capital  operations power interest ~ Principal activities
BSR/
NELE] AMRANEE EMREEDE hE#E mAREs IBEH
Suzhou PetroChina Kunlun ~ RMB117,650,000  PRC/Mainland 49% 49%  Sale of gas products,
Suchuang Gas Co., Ltd.* China and pipeline
(“Kunlun Suchuang Gas”) construction and
maintenance
MNP RRERFEIRE AR®E  HERAM HEMRER  ZR
BRAR (TE®EHEIMAL)  117,650,0007 kEEER
Suzhou PetroChina Kunlun RMB50,000,000  PRC/Mainland 40% 40%  Manufacture and
Suchuang Natural Gas China sale of compressed
Usage Co., Ltd.* natural gas
(“Kunlun Suchuang Usage”)
FMPRMERFEIRAR ARE  SER SERHERRERAR
MABRRT ([EmEE 50,000,0007C
ML)
* The statutory financial statements were not audited * EEMBREOREEALKE
by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member *fﬁmifkﬁﬁjiﬁﬂl%ﬂiﬁﬁﬂﬂ
firm of the Ernst & Young global network. And the PRKERAFEZ - AE BB E
English translation of the company name is for EREH2E ’\ﬁjﬁ'ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁ
reference only. The official name of the company is R o
in Chinese.
(b) The associates had no contingent liabilities as at (b) M2014%F FK20134128318 » B
31 December 2014 and 2013. NG ESL R B S o
(c) The Group’s outstanding balances and transactions () AEBRERYUBLATIHNRES
with the associates during the year are disclosed in HIE RS R 23 R HEE33
note 23 and note 33 respectively. e
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16. Investments in Associates (Continued)

(d)

The Group’s investments in associates are
considered to be individually material to the
Group. The following table illustrates the
summarised financial information of the Group’s

associates:

Notes to Financial Statements

BTSRRI T

Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F 128318 ILFE

16. REFE QX RINIRE (F)

P2 R AR B S
AEEERMEBEKN - NREM
AEEBERRNTBEERRR -

(d)

AREBRE

4 AK S\

Kunlun Suchuang Gas Em#EIMR

2014 2013

20144 20134

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBEFIT AREFIT

Non-current assets ERBEE 49,849 52,455
Current assets MENEE 77,498 71,131
Current liabilities mEEE (5,802) (3,751)
Net assets BESE 121,545 119,835
Ownership interest (%) Fir B R 52(%) 49 49
59,557 58,719
Impact of adjustments R R (2,119) (2,235)
Share of net assets DIEBEFE 57,438 56,484

Kunlun Suchuang Gas distributed dividends to
its shareholders amounting to RMB3,770,000
in the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013:
RMB9,720,000). The Group’s share of the
dividend distribution was RMB1,847,000 (2013:
RMB4,763,000).

REZ2014F12831BIEEE ER
HEAMRAEBRRELREDIRA
AR #3,770,0007C (20134 : AR #&
9,720,0007T) ° AKE D (HIRE DK A
A R #1,847,0007T (20135 : AR
4,763,0007C) °
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B TR P 5
Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F 128318 LFE

16. Investments in Associates (Continued) EAH?%." ANERE (&)
(d) (Continued) ) (&)
Kunlun Suchuang Gas (Continued) EmEAIMRR (&)
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFIT ARBFIT
Revenue WA 138,179 156,096
Profit for the year F & A 5,716 4,424
Other comprehensive income FEEMmEEKE
for the year = -
Total comprehensive income
for the year FETEKEEE 5,716 4,424
Ownership interest (%) B R 25 (%) 49 49
Share of results DIEE 2,801 2,168
Kunlun Suchuang Usage ER&AIF A
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Non-current assets ERBEE 30,465 17,272
Current assets MENE E 29,968 35,396
Current liabilities mBEE (6,763) (4,366)
Net assets BERE 53,670 48,302
Ownership interest (%) T8 HERE 2R (%) 40 40
Share of net assets DI EEFE 21,468 19,321
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Notes to Financial Statements
WIS RR M T

Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F12A31B IEFEE

16. Investments in Associates (Continued) 16. REtE R RNRE (&)
(d) (Continued) (d) (&)
Kunlun Suchuang Usage (Continued) Em#alRA (F)
No dividend was received from Kunlun Suchuang RER - #E G5 EmeralF B UER
Usage during the year. EAIARE
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥EFTTT ARETFTT
Revenue WA 94,094 83,215
Profit for the year FEm A 5,367 2,793
Other comprehensive income FEEHMEEKZ

for the year = =

Total comprehensive income

for the year FREPEWHERE 5,367 2,793
Ownership interest (%) FT 8 #EHE 25 (%) 40 40
Share of results DIHEE 2,147 1,117

17. Investment in a Subsidiary 17. R B A RNRE
Company P NN
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTIT
Unlisted shares, at cost JE ETHI&D BT R 8 8
The amount due from a subsidiary included in the EREEARARDEENRKMER
Company’s current asset of RMB310,774,000 (2013: AIFIE A AR ¥310,774,0007T (2013
RMB33,488,000) is unsecured, interest-free and is £ A R ¥33,488,0000T) @ B £ K
repayable on demand. B RRRARERER -
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Notes to Financial Statements

B TR P 5
Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F 128318 LFE

17. RffBARNKRE (&)
R2014F12A318 » A AR E#E KE
EREEMNBAR (22X EILABR
BEAERAA - iR EBIBINEMAKAL
AIAFRERBFMELHIARRRK
BRAE MR MRS - ZERRIMEE
BEHINMAT :

17. Investment in a Subsidiary (Continued)
As at 31 December 2014, the Company had direct and
indirect interests in its subsidiaries, all of which are
private limited liability companies (or, if incorporated
outside Hong Kong, have substantially similar
characteristics to a private company incorporated in
Hong Kong), the particulars of which are set out below:

Date and place Nominal value

126

of incorporation/
registration and

of issued
ordinary/

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company

place of registered share  ARAEEEEZNED L
Name of company operations capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
Balii e
BalGoJENiDe BEALAR/
N B R 2 E A AR E{E BR BE  EFEXK
% %
Subsidiaries
HWELF
China Suchuang Energy 6 August 2013 HK$10,000 100 - Investment holding
Co., (Hong Kong) Ltd.* Hong Kong
(“Suchuang Hong Kong )
FEEEIER (BE) 201348 A6H 10,000/ 7 AR
BB ([#a1EE]) BE
Taicang Natural Gas 14 May 2002 RMB188,000,000 - 100  Distribution and sale of
Company Limited*/** PRC/Mainland natural gas, provision of
(“Taicang Natural Gas”) China natural gas transmission,
main contractor of
construction and
installation of gas
pipelines
REMARRERAF 200245A14H ARE RERBERRR - 2t
(TRBRAR]) PEIA 188,000,0007C ARREE - (ERRER
ZEMREENIRABH
Suzhou Zhongyu 14 May 2012 RMB10,000,000 - 100 Construction and
Energy Development PRC/Mainland operation of natural gas
Co., Ltd.*/** China filling stations
(“Suzhou Zhongyu”)
BT FRERRARAR 2012654148 N BEEABRARRMAL
(& M=F]) PEAL 10,000,0007C
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17. Investment in a Subsidiary (Continued)

18

Notes:

*  The statutory financial statements were not audited by
Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the
Ernst & Young global network.

**  The English names of the subsidiaries registered in the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) represents the best
efforts made by management of the Company to translate
their Chinese names as they do not have official English

names.

Deferred Tax
Deferred tax assets

The following are the deferred tax assets recognised

Notes to Financial Statements

BTSRRI T

Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F 128318 IEFE

11%%%&%%&?(%)
T ¢

* REMBBMRGAEEBLOKEAEE
BT Z K Bl AR A A R E X -

o RREARLME ([HE]) G A H
BRARIMIEAR LM - HZEAA
MRXEBDRARBERERNBZ
FRANPNEEBEEH -

18. IEIEH IR
FEREBEEE
WERN - DREREEHIEAER S

and the movements therein during the year: wnr
Group REE
Allowance
for Accruals
Deferred doubtful and
income receivables provisions Total
e W 308 FEETE A &
EEMA RIRR B BEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Deferred tax assets RIEFIBEE ARETIT ARETIT ARETIT ARETT
Gross deferred tax M2013F1A1H
assets at 1 January BRI R IH
2013 BELEE 18,357 125 2,711 21,193
Deferred tax credited/ FWEA S
(charged) to profit or (NkAE) Bx
loss during the year HIRETR IR
(note 10) (FFzE10) 3,095 = (641) 2,454
Gross deferred tax assets 20134
at 31 December 2013 12A318 %
and 1 January 2014 20141 H18
BB R IE
BEARE 21,452 125 2,070 23,647
Deferred tax credited/ FERTA S
(charged) to profit or ($0BRE) Bz
loss during the year BIR LR 1R
(note 10) (FizE10) 3,145 - (64) 3,081
At 31 December 2014 M2014F12A31H 24,597 125 2,006 26,728
2014 FF® | FHEAMBRDERAR]
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Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F 128318 LFE

18. Deferred Tax (Continued)
Deferred tax assets (Continued)
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect

of the following:

18ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ(%)

IﬂﬁMTﬂﬁﬁﬂm FIEMIEE B

2014 2013

20144 20134

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥EFTTT AREFTT

Tax losses not recognised AERW T IEEE 1,080 1,288

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect
of these losses as they have arisen in newly-established
subsidiaries that have been loss-making and they are
not considered probable that taxable profits will be
available in the foreseeable future against which the tax

losses can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax
rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%. The Group
is therefore liable to withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in
Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1
January 2008.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2014
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18.

19.

Deferred Tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

As at 31 December 2014, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject
to withholding taxes of a subsidiary of the Group
established in Mainland China. In the opinion of the
Directors, it is not probable that this subsidiary will
distribute earnings arising from 1 January 2008 to 31
December 2014 in the foreseeable future. The aggregate
amount of temporary differences associated with the
investment in the subsidiary in Mainland China for
which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised
totalled approximately RMB17.6 million as at 31
December 2014 (2013: RMB9.4 million).

18.

Notes to Financial Statements
WIS RR M T

Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F12A31B IEFEE

EEBIE (8)

EERIEESE (&)
MW2014F12 8318 » WERAE BB
R B P K S Y BT B B B T O R BE
BNFEENTENHERELETIE - &
ERE - ZMBRRIRA R KT
B8 9 k200841 A1H 22014512 A31
HER®AF - KR2014F12831H -
ER 5 & 1A R B A b B /BB 2 B 48 B8 A R
MERBEBLERALSNARKEI7.6BET
(20134 : ARE9A4FETT) MAMER
RELERERE -

Prepayments, Deposits and Other 19. ANRE - R RHMERKE
Receivables
Group REE
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTIT ARETIT
Prepayments TERFRIE 5,263 16,951
Deposits and other receivables B E R E A WA 11,688 9,178
16,951 26,129
Classified as: G
Current mE 14,112 23,643
Non-current JEm B 2,839 2,486
16,951 26,129

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables are
unsecured, non-interest-bearing and have no fixed
terms of repayment.

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.
The financial assets included in the above balances
relate to receivables for which there was no recent

history of default.

BNRE - e REAARKSUARER
o B EEEESRE -

HE EAEERBIMSCREIE - E5TA
bt ERE & RS B BT HIN SR AR
B IRARE
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Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F 128318 LFE

20. Inventories 20. BE&
Group AEE
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARET T
Construction materials M 5,292 6,378
Natural gas KAR 492 313
Consumables SHFE 30 252
5,814 6,943
21. Amounts Due from Construction Contract 21. EWERESREFRE
Customers
Group REH
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARETFIT
Arising from construction of ERAAREE
natural gas pipelines EEXNER S A45 47,417
22. Trade and Bills Receivables 22. ERE ZRIFAREE
Group REH
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT AREFIT
Trade receivables JEUE 5 8RN 54,988 57,965
Less: Impairment B ORME (499) (499)
54,489 57,466
Bills receivable eSS 1,986 -
56,475 57,466
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22. Trade and Bills Receivables (Continued)

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are
mainly on credit except for certain new customers
where payment in advance is required. The average
trade credit period ranges from 5 days to 180 days.
The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables and overdue balances are
reviewed regularly and actively monitored by senior
management to minimise credit risk.

Trade and bills receivables are unsecured and non-
interest-bearing.

Aging analysis by invoice date

An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the

22. BEIWE 5 ERE

Notes to Financial Statements
WIS RR M T

Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F12A31B IEFEE

AR EE (&)

BB TR ARMRRIN  AEE T
EREENAEBEEFRS - FHRH
EERNFSHE180H - REBEHR
1;5&FH& R BREEE  SHEE
EHIRE WiR R B i B s R
?f“ﬁzi’lﬂ*gﬂ R 2 RIE

UEZEARRERERRL RS

BRERZE AN RER DN
HEFAHLMERRER - RFEROE

end of the year, based on the invoice date and net of WE SRR DT ¢
provisions, is as follows:
Group REE
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥EFTT AREFTT
Within 90 days 90H K 30,318 37,194
90 days to 180 days 90H £180H 6,734 4,224
180 days to 360 days 180H£=360H 4,761 11,990
Over 360 days HBiE360H 12,676 4,058
54,489 57,466
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Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F 128318 LFE

22. Trade and Bills Receivables (Continued)
Trade receivables not individually nor
collectively impaired
An aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not

22. BRRE SRR RE (&)

WEE R EERENERE S
BRX
I BRI ERE LR ARENEKE

individually nor collectively considered to be impaired SERFBERESITAT -
is as follows:
Group KEE
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBEFIT AREFIT
Neither past due nor impaired 37 4 260 B SIOR(E 19,151 35,285
Past due but not impaired: EAHERRE :
Less than 90 days LIR90H 22,662 17,587
Over 90 days HE90H 12,676 4,594
54,489 57,466

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a large number of diversified customers for
whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the Directors believe that no impairment allowance
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.
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22. Trade and Bills Receivables (Continued)
Trade receivables that are impaired
The Group’s trade receivables that are impaired at the
end of the year and the movements in the provision for
impairment of trade receivables are as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements
WIS RR M T

Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F12A31B IEFEE

22. BB ZRAREE (&)

ERENEWRE S R
AEBRFRNDBRERKE S ERK
FEW B Z SRR E R EE ST

Group REE
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥EFTTT AREFTT

Movement in allowance account: BERNEE :

At beginning and end of year REYIRER 499 499
Impairment for trade receivables U E 5 ERFORE - -
499 499

The impaired trade receivables relate to individual
customers that were in financial difficulties or were
in default in payments and the receivables are not
expected to be recovered. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over these

balances.

B R (B &Y FE W 5 AR 5K B T B B B TR 2
s BN ERIE P R FEHA Y E
JEWFKIERRE - N"EEWERZFEER
BETMERRIEREMEEMRE
i)
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HE2014F 128318 LFE

23. Balances with Related Parties

23. EEE L AR

Group NEE
2014 2013
2014% 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥EFTTT ARETFTT
Amounts due from other related FEWHE bR E T
parties MIE
Kunlun Suchuang Usage Em#elf A 84 950
Kunlun Suchuang Gas EmaraliE 47 1,010
Suzhou Suling Automobile Service BR NN R )T B AR S
Co., Ltd. (“Suzhou Suling BRAA
Automobile Service”) ([BRMERZE RSB RTE ) 42 -
Suzhou City Suchuang Group Co., Ltd. E/NT#RAIEEER A a)
(“Suchuang Group”) (T#rEI=E ) - 194,126
173 196,086
Amount due to the holding company  FE{JIZER D FFIE
Dekai Energy Investment Limited EIRIRERR AT
(“Dekai Energy”) ([1=glaelR]) = 33,435
Amount due to an other related party FE{fEEIE S B
Suchuang Group el E 946 =
Company ENNG|
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETTT AREFTT
Amount due from a subsidiary eI B A R IE
Suchuang Hong Kong RIS 310,774 33,488
Amount due to the holding company  FE{Yi%2R 2 FIFE
Dekai Energy =Elae IR - 33,435
* The ultimate controlling shareholders of other related * H th B 38 A B B S AT IR R R BT AR
companies are the Controlling Shareholders. IRER -
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23.

24.

Balances with Related Parties (Continued)
The amounts due from other related parties were
non-trade in nature, except for the aggregate amount
of RMB173,000 as at 31 December 2014 (2013:
RMB1,960,000).

During the year, the aggregate amounts due from/to
other related parties and the holding company were

unsecured, repayable on demand and interest-free.

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Pledged
Deposits

23.

24.

Notes to Financial Statements
WIS RR M T

Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F12A31B IEFEE

BREEER SRR ()
JEWHMBEAESRIEBFEESHE -
M FR2014F12A31H W) 2 58 A A
R #173,000C (2013F : A R ¥
1,960,0007T) BRI o

RER - U T EMBEES RIZR
NEBBELAERR  AREXREERR

B o

oY

RERRTEBYREERERK

Group REH
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBEFIT AREFIT
Cash and bank balances B RIBTT4 R 129,890 76,271
Less: Pledged short-term deposits B B ERAE HITE K (4,513) (6,463)
Cash and cash equivalents HE MBS EEY 125,377 69,808
Denominated in RMB NARKEEE 127,925 45,786
Denominated in US$ LAZETTEHE - 30,485
Denominated in HK$ LA TTETE 1,965 -
129,890 76,271

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. The bank balances and
pledged deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks
with no recent history of default. The carrying amounts
of the cash and cash equivalents and pledged deposits

approximate to their fair values.

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the balances of
pledged deposits are all pledged as security for trade
payables to suppliers of natural gas.

RITRSWEARTERNXRIUE)
MB o RITHETF M ERERIDIFRTE
ERIFEBEOBMABEOTHENR
T -RELREFEYREERFRT
FREEEEQFHERE

20144 K2013F12 8318 @ 2K
FREGEIBAERNRARBERE
SERFRE A -
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B TR P 5
Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F 128318 LFE

24. Cash and Cash Equivalents and Pledged

Deposits (Continued)

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

24, BERACEEYREERERK

(%)
EEARBIEERLBRBEMES -
AT AR R B b CHME B 32 AR B
K(HEE - EERMNEBTERE) A%
B8 7 B R R AR AT S R VIR TT
HARBLBAEMER -

25. Trade and Bills Payables 25. EREZBRRKRERE
Group rEHE
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Trade payables JERE B R 42,405 24,913

An aging analysis of the outstanding trade payables as
at the end of the year, based on the invoice date, is as

follows:

REZRH RERNAKEEERNES
RARRBRE DA T -

2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETTT ARET T
Within 90 days 90H N 35,352 19,848
91 to 180 days 91HZ=180H 2,619 2,410
181 to 365 days 181HZ365H 2,948 1,556
1 to 2 years 1FEZE2F 1,486 1,069
Over 2 years 26 E - 30
42,405 24,913

Trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are ENEZERRR/TERE  —RRZAM180

normally settled within 180 days.
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26. Other Payables and Accruals

Notes to Financial Statements
WIS RR M T

Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F 128318 IEEE

26. HWENAREREFTE A

Group REE
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥EFTTT ARETFTT
Payroll and welfare payables ENEH e RER 2,231 1,144
Accruals JEETE 2,026 1,603
Other tax payables Ho A fE S 718 7,284 8,139
Other payables H fth fE A~ Fh1E 61,016 57,926
72,557 68,812

Company VAN
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETTT AREFTT
Payroll and welfare payables P % & KAaF 1,126 =
Accruals JEETE - 108
1,126 108

Other payables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and Hit ENREREER 2R RARE

repayable on demand.
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27. Deferred Income 27 IEZEW A
Group REE
Government Connection
grants fee Total
BT 4 BG BAE 45T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT ARETIT
At 1 January 2013 201351 H1H - 73,428 73,428
Additions during the year FRRE - 23,425 23,425
Released to profit or loss BAEDER = (11,045) (11,045)
At 31 December 2013 and #2013 12A318 &

1 January 2014 2014F1H1H - 85,808 85,808
Additions during the year FRARE 9,980 15,544 25,524
Released to profit or loss BABRRE (83) (12,862) (12,945)
At 31 December 2014 201412 A31H 9,897 88,490 98,387
Analysed into: BT RBIEDH
Current D 499 13,385 13,884
Non-current FETRED 9,398 75,105 84,503

9,897 88,490 98,387

BEABNER/ATFHREEAMRER
EPRTAAREBREMELNER -
=

Connection fee represents the fees from customers in
advance in exchange for the connection of gas pipelines
to the urban natural gas pipeline network. These fees
HAR(E R+ hERR o

are received upfront and revenue is recognised over
their expected useful lives of ten years.

Asset related government grants are recognised over HEEAMHMAARENEE DR ENRRE
expected useful lives of those gas pipeline assets for BEERHAERFH -+ FHER -

twenty years.
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Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F 128318 IEEE

28. Interest-Bearing Bank Loans

Group REHE
2014 2013
2014% 201345
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥EFTTT ARETFTT
Bank loans, secured BEMIRITER 120,000 499,000
Bank loans, unsecured ELRRITER - =
120,000 499,000
Bank loans bear interest at rates per A F- LA &3 B 4 Al = 7.21% 5.20% to
annum in the range of STERRITER 7.20%
Repayable within one year AR—FRNER - 499,000
Repayable in the second year BB _FER 30,000 -
Repayable in the third to fifth years, ARE=FEFELF
inclusive B (BEEREMF) 90,000 -
120,000 499,000
Analysed into: BRUTREDN
Current mE = 499,000
Non-current FEREN 120,000 -
120,000 499,000
The Group’s interest-bearing bank loans are all REBOGERITERZITEHUARE
denominated in RMB. FIME -
The carrying amounts of the Group’s current interest- REE R BRITE RO REEHE
bearing bank loans approximate to their fair values. HRAFERE
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Year ended 31 December 2014
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28. Interest-Bearing Bank Loans (Continued)
The Group’s interest-bearing bank loans are secured by

the pledges of the following assets with carrying values

at the end of the year as follows:

28. ST RMITER (&)
A& BRITERTIARE RERE
{EITARE AT BRI -

2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥EFTTT AREFTT

Pledge of assets: BREE :
Prepaid land lease payments Taft i EKIA (i) 4,522 6,968
Property, plant and equipment E RN Y (i) 130,319 251,257

Notes:

(i)

(iii)

The interest-bearing bank loans amounting to
RMB120,000,000 as at 31 December 2014 were jointly
secured by Group’s prepaid land lease payments and
property, plant and equipment.

The interest-bearing bank loans amounting to
RMB140,000,000 as at 31 December 2013 were jointly
secured by Group’s prepaid land lease payments,
property, plant and equipment, related parties and
properties of related parties. Details are disclosed in note
33(b) to the financial statements.

The interest-bearing bank loans amounting to
RMB359,000,000 as at 31 December 2013 were
guaranteed by related parties and properties of related
parties. Details are disclosed in note 33(b) to the
financial statements.

Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2014

it

(iii)

MR2014F12A831H A A R ¥
120,000,000 C 5T B ER1TE KT A
EEMEN L AEFIEARDE « K
BN E AL R o

M20135128318 A A B #&
140,000,000 7T A 5T B ER1TE I A
EEMENTHHEERE WX - BE
NEE - BERRBEESDEERE
1 o BRI IEIHREMFEI3()FE -

MR2013F12A831H A A R ¥
359,000,000 T K &T B #R1TE 5K T H 4
HRBEFTERER - SFBERYBR
KHIFE33(b)IHEE o



Notes to Financial Statements
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Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F 128318 IEEE

29. Issued Capital 29. ERITRAE
Shares &)
Nominal
Nominal value of Nominal
Number of value of HK$0.01 value
Notes shares US$1 each each RMB
BikEE BikEE ARE
(i B8R 17T 0.01#7T HfE
Authorised: R
Upon incorporation, and  FERAZE &
at 31 December 2013 20134
12A318 (i) 50,000 50,000 - 308,775
Authorisation EE (i) 5,000,000,000 - 50,000,000 39,378,500
Repurchase and EAEY &
cancellation (iii) (50,000) (50,000) - (308,775)
At 31 December 2014 20144
12A318 5,000,000,000 - 50,000,000 39,378,500
Nominal
Nominal value of Nominal
Number of value of HK$0.01 value
Notes shares US$1 each each RMB
BiEE BREA ARE
(i B & A E 0.0187T HE
Issued and fully paid: EZTRAE :
Upon incorporation, A AR L 18 &
and at 31 December R2013%F
2013 12H31H (i) 10,000 10,000 - 61,755
Issues of shares E:Sal ) (i) 7,800,000 - 78,000 61,430
Repurchase i=AE (iii) (10,000) (10,000) - (61,755)
Issues of shares BT (iv) 4,599,256 = 45,993 36,328
At 31 December 2014 20144
128318 12,399,256 - 123,993 97,758
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29. Issued Capital (Continued)

Shares (Continued)
Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

On 4 July 2013, the Company was incorporated in
the Cayman Islands with an authorised share capital
of US$50,000.00 divided into 50,000 shares with a
par value of US$1.00 each. In addition, 10,000 shares
were fully-paid and issued to Dekai Energy, a company
incorporated in the BVI.

On 20 January 2014, the authorised share capital
of the Company was increased to the aggregate of
US$50,000.00 and HK$50,000,000.00 by the creation of
an additional 5,000,000,000 shares with a par value of
HK$0.01 each. On the same date, 7,800,000 shares with
a par value of HK$0.01 each (the “New Shares”) were
issued and allotted to Dekai Energy as fully paid shares
in consideration of the Repurchase (as defined below) of
shares from Dekai Energy by the Company.

On 20 January 2014, the Company repurchased 10,000
shares with a par value of US$1.00 each from Dekai
Energy (the “Repurchase”), such repurchase price was
made out of the proceeds of the issue of the New Shares
which is made for the purpose of the Repurchase. On the
same date following the Repurchase, any authorised but
unissued shares with a par value of US$1.00 each were
cancelled and the amount of authorised share capital
of the Company was diminished by the amount of the
shares so cancelled, and that the authorised share capital
of the Company became HK$50,000,000.00 divided into
5,000,000,000 shares with a par value of HK$0.01 each.

On 19 February 2014, the Company capitalised a loan
of US$5,000,000 due to Dekai Energy by issuing and
allotting 200,000 shares with a par value of HK$0.01 to
Dekai Energy as fully paid.

On 19 February 2014, Dekai Energy transferred
8,000,000 shares, representing the then entire issued
share capital of the Company, to Fung Yu Holdings in
consideration of the assignment of the promissory notes
by Fung Yu Holdings to Dekai Energy. Subsequent to the
transfer, the Company became a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Fung Yu Holdings.

The Company issued 3,420,955 shares to Fung Yu
Holdings. The cash consideration of US$ equivalent of
RMB200,000,000 for the issuance was unconditionally
settled on 28 February 2014.

On 10 March 2014, Fung Yu Holdings and Jade Deluxe
entered into a share transfer agreement (the “Jade
Deluxe Agreement”) pursuant to which Fung Yu Holdings
agreed to transfer to Jade Deluxe 495,970 shares in
consideration of HK$36,900,000.

The Company issued 978,301 shares to Fung Yu Holdings
in consideration of US$12,937,000 (equivalent to
RMB79,160,000) on 24 June 2014.
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30. Reserves
(a) Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the year are presented in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents those reserve arose
from the reorganisation for the purpose of listing.
Details of the movements in the merger reserve are

set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

Statutory reserve fund

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations
applicable to wholly-foreign-owned companies,
certain entities within the Group are required to
allocate a certain portion (not less than 10%), as
determined by their Boards of Directors, of their
profit after tax in accordance with PRC GAAP to
the statutory reserve fund (the “SRF”) until such
reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital.

The SRF is non-distributable other than in the event
of liquidation and, subject to certain restrictions
set out in the relevant PRC regulations, can be
used to offset accumulated losses or be capitalised
as issued capital.

In accordance with relevant regulations and the
articles of association, a subsidiary registered in
the PRC as a domestic company is required to
appropriate 10% of its net profit (after offsetting
accumulated losses from prior years) to the
statutory surplus reserve. After the balance of
such reserve reaches 50% of the entity’s capital,
any further appropriation is at the discretion of
the company. The statutory surplus reserve can be
utilised to offset accumulated losses or increase
capital. However, the balance of the statutory
surplus reserve must be maintained at a minimum
of 25% of the capital after such usages.

Notes to Financial Statements
WIS RR M T

Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F12A31B IEFEE

30. &%
(a) AREH

AEERFANRESRREES
DREEREEHRAZS -

B G te
EHEBES LTENMETER

DB ERLDE -

RIEF B EA RN EE A Fla 18
AR AEBEETHETERA
HREZSGREERPELRERAY
HieE TEMHBRBE RN (T
R10%) 2B (AT
#H2])  BEEzREEETBRES
50%#1E ©

EERBEA/TA DK HEHIRF
RISNMRBERED BB AESE
TREATAERERABEEIER
BARTBITIRARRIN o

REEBERLEBRERMAR - &
TEEMARNE QR NHNE R A
AEHEMANEI10% (KEHEHBE
FENRAEERR) AT BGBR
o MABENEHREESZERE
R E50%7& - X & Bl /] B 15 E
EE — R - SR EBERFE A
RERHRETERHIEE - A -
RIEH B RERR - OEE B
RHERAEFER TP RELRDN
25% ©
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30. Reserves (Continued)
(a) Group (Continued)
Capital reserve
Capital reserve pertains to the benefit derived by
the Group from receiving related party loans with

interest rates below the market rate.

Distributable reserve

For dividend purposes, the amounts which the
PRC companies can legally distribute by way of
a dividend are determined by reference to the
distributable profits as reflected in their PRC
statutory financial statements which are prepared
in accordance with PRC GAAP. These profits differ
from those that are reflected in this report which is
prepared in accordance with IFRSs.

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC,
profits after tax of the PRC companies can be
distributed as dividends after the appropriation to
the SRF as set out above.
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Notes to Financial Statements

AR ER R T
Year ended 31 December 2014
HZE2014F 12831 HIEFE
30. Reserves (Continued) 30. f#E (&)
(b) Company (b) AQF]
Retained
profits/
Capital  (accumulated
surplus losses) Total equity
REBEF
W (R&TEE) e
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETTT ARETTT
At 4 July 2013 R2013F7 B4H
(date of incorporation) (FEMASZ B HR) - = =
Loss for the period EAfE B 1R = (109) (109)
At 31 December 2013 201312 H31H
and 1 January 2014 201451 H1H - (109) (109)
Loss for the year FREE - (940) (940)
Deemed contribution RIEBIERAR]
from the holding BEFE
company 932 - 932
Capital injection FE 309,675 - 309,675
Proposed final 2014 FEE2014F RERRE
dividend (17,600) - (17,600)
At 31 December 2014 120144128310 293,007 (1,049) 291,958

ARBEARREEARRRD A
EBRLARABRRERAREARTE
MBETHORMNEENTE °

The Company’s capital surplus represents the
excess of the fair value of the shares of the
Company over the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange therefor.
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31. Operating Lease Arrangements
As lessor
The Group leases certain sections of its buildings under
operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated
for terms ranging from one to three years. The terms of
the leases generally also require tenants to pay security

deposits.

At the end of the year, the Group had total future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable

operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

31.

REHERH

EREEA
AEERBEEZHELHEEEETH
HETEMD  BEBBE—E=F1%F-
HERR—RIPERKEL XM RER

AEEREEETPRTI AT AL HH A&
SHENFRIHORKERRERE
HIEGAT

Group REH
2014 2013
20144 201345
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT
Within one year —F R 1,347 879

In the second to fifth years, inclusive ~ FEZZEFRF
(BEEREMF) 995 1,166
2,342 2,045
32. Capital Commitments 32. EAKIE

The Group had the following capital commitments at
the end of the year:

RER » REBHEAALFELT

Group EME
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFIT AREFIT
Contracted, but not provided for: EETAE KRB
Plant and machinery VS = 7,742
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33.BEFRS
(a) BREKRER

33. Related Party Transactions
(a) Name and relationship

Name of related party

Relationship with the Group

FRET B BN SR B B (%
Kunlun Suchuang Gas Associated company
EREFAIMA A S

Kunlun Suchuang Usage
EmEalF A

Suchuang Group
3 ESE]

Shanghai Suchuang International Trading Co., Ltd.
(“Suchuang International”)

LagaREARAR ([#EIHE])

Shanghai Shenxin International Trading Co., Ltd.
(“Shanghai Shenxin”)
L ERERBESERAR ([ LEHRSZ])

Taicang Suchuang LPG Co., Ltd. (“Suchuang LPG”)
AREEIRIERBRAR ([ERENKRIIER])

Taicang Suchuang Dangerous Goods Transportation
Co., Ltd. (“Dangerous Goods Transportation”)
AegelehmERARAR ([BhmEH )

Suzhou Shunchuang Pipeline Engineering Co., Ltd.
(“Suzhou Shunchuang Pipeline”)
#MIERIEBTRRERAR ([#MIELIEE])

Suzhou Suling Automobile Service

Associated company

iAA
/NG

Company controlled by the Controlling
Shareholders
PERR AR R 12 i 0 2 7]

Company controlled by the Controlling
Shareholders
PR AR R IE S A B

Company controlled by the Controlling
Shareholders
PR AR R IE S A B

Company controlled by the Controlling
Shareholders
PR AR R IE S A B

Company controlled by the Controlling
Shareholders
PR AR R IE S A B

Company controlled by the Controlling
Shareholders
PR AR R IE S A B

Company controlled by the Controlling
Shareholders
PR AR RIS A B
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33. Related Party Transactions (Continued) 33.EAEARS (&)

(b) Apart from the transactions and balances disclosed (b) RERA - BB Rk &b 381 B i
elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group BRI 5 M EEERIN - AN B 3
had the following material transactions with FHERR ST :
related parties during the year:

2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETTT

Associates: B NT -

Transmission and sale of natural — #iX % #5E
gas to AT T

Kunlun Suchuang Gas Emarel iR (i)/(1) 4,938 7,427
Kunlun Suchuang Usage EmeralF A (i)/(1) 3,817 2,833
8,755 10,260
Purchase of natural gas from BT AR
Kunlun Suchuang Gas Em#ralAR /(1) 31,151 42,870
Kunlun Suchuang Usage Em#elF A /(1) 118 1,300
31,269 44,170
Rental income Az WA
Kunlun Suchuang Gas E m#ralAR (ii)/(1) 571 130
Kunlun Suchuang Usage Em#alF A (i)/(1) 724 591
1,295 721

148  Suchuang Gas Corporation Limited | Annual Report 2014



33. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(b)

Apart from the transactions and balances disclosed (b)

elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group

had the following material transactions with

related parties during the year: (Continued)

Notes to Financial Statements
WIS RR M T
Year ended 31 December 2014

HE2014F12A31B IEFEE

33.FEARS (&)
RERN - BBIERE H M50 B
B S RAEESBIN -
FHEBAZSMT : (&)

ARER B B RR

2014 2013
20144 20135
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT
Fellow subsidiaries: BRMEBLF :
Rental income A HA
Suchuang Group #EIEE (ii)/(2) 347 68
Suchuang LPG ERElBIER (i/(1) 84 -
431 68
Disposal of fixed assets and HEBLEBER
prepaid land lease payments TR+ T ESTE
Suchuang Group G ] (i)/(2) 34,074 -
Purchase of construction B U T2 AlERAE
materials from BETH
Suchuang International #HEIRE (H12) - 2,694
Shanghai Shenxin tEmE ()(2) - 18,920
= 21,614
Purchase of goods from B U T2 AlERAE
Ein
Suzhou Suling Automobile Service ERMERZETHRLE  ()/(3) 109 94
Suchuang LPG EEIRIER /(1) 757 990
866 1,084
Service of transportation L T2 ahe
provided by B R
Dangerous Goods Transportation 15 ki in 38 %) (i)/(2) 31 271
Service of gas pipeline connection A X altett
provided by MR EBEARE
Suzhou Shunchuang Pipeline &N ERE & (iii) 12,984 99,234
Trademark fee BIEE
Suchuang Group e (iv) - -
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Year ended 31 December 2014
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33. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(b)

Apart from the transactions and balances disclosed

elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group

had the following material transactions with

related parties during the year: (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

The above transactions were conducted in
accordance with the terms and conditions mutually
agreed by both parties.

On July 2014, the Group entered into an
agreement with Suchuang Group to sell certain
items of buildings to Suchuang Group for a total
consideration of RMB34,074,000. The consideration
is determined and agreed by the two parties by
reference to the market value based on valuations
performed by an independent professionally
qualified valuer.

Represents consideration received for the rental of
office premises to the Group’s associates and the
fellow subsidiaries. The Directors confirmed that
the annual rent payable under the relevant rent
agreements had been agreed by both parties.

The construction and installation fees paid to
Suzhou Shunchuang Pipeline were determined
with reference to the scale and complexity of work
carried out by Suzhou Shunchuang Pipeline, the
fixed price relating to construction and installation
set by the local government, the market rate and the
terms with independent third parties engaged by the
Group in similar transactions. Suzhou Shunchuang
Pipeline ceased to be a related party of the Group
from July 2014 as the equity interest of Suzhou
Shunchuang Pipeline held by the Controlling
Shareholders was disposed of to independent
third parties on 16 July 2014. Accordingly, those
transactions starting from July 2014 were no longer
treated as related party transactions of the Group.

The Group entered into a trademark licensing
agreement with Suchuang Group on 1 August
2014 (the “Trademark Licensing Agreement”),
pursuant to which Suchuang Group agreed to grant
to Taicang Natural Gas and Suzhou Zhongyu the
right to use its trademarks in the PRC for a nominal
consideration of RMB1.00.
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33.BEFRS (&)

(b)

RER - BT BHRERE B0 T H
B 5 KGRI - AR B RERE
FTOEBERZSWMT : (&)

fas -

(i)

(i)

B 5 THRREZ 58 75 KR 15 E e 15
RBARIETT ©

R2014F78 A& B HE 8l &£ B
A —OE ABRREBARE
34,074,0007C M &k &l &£ B 1 & & T

FIHE - REHELHKL2ERBBEIE
FABERMEMGEMSOHTERET
RIWARE °

HERASBE L R E RFERNBAR
HERIEMEND WRE - EFHER
HRBERER TENEEESIKE
TTWE °

mEIMNIERIE BT NHERRLEER
T2 E w5 BRI E BEITH T2 RE
MAETEME - H 5 BT AT B B
ZHEETE B - MHKFERAREER
HURSERBIFE = TWIEREBE
TE o HREEIRA R AT A M AR B A
EREE2014F7 A16HE HE B
EF=7  WEMNIBRIEEHR201457 8
BABAREBMEBEES - KIL - A
2014F7 ARRFTETHNR 2 TBHEKE A
AEBENBEEAIRS °

AREER2014F8 A1 H gk Al &£ B 7T
AR RE R (g
W) o Bt - BEAIEERENBER
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33. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

(b)

Apart from the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group
had the following material transactions with
related parties during the year: (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(v)  Other transactions with related parties:

The related party transactions listed below are all
free of charge.

Guarantees provided for interest-bearing bank loans
by related parties
The Group’s interest-bearing bank loans were

Notes to Financial Statements
WIS RR M T

Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F 128318 IEEE

33.FEARS (&)
(b) RER - BRI RRE IR
BMAR SRR AEEERE
FHEBAZSMT : (&)

BeE - (&)
(v) BBETETHEMRS

THEENRXBEREE °

BEE 7 BLat BIRTT B e BT HE (R

AEENF BRITERHATSBARR

jointly guaranteed as follows: iR
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETFT
Controlling Shareholders ERARARER = 20,000
Controlling Shareholders and 2SN = NG|
fellow subsidiaries = 289,000
Controlling Shareholders, fellow TRRALER - B RH B AR &E
subsidiaries and shares of a fellow  RHEB A &A%
subsidiary - 30,000
Controlling Shareholders, fellow ZARAR R - R F TR A K [
subsidiary and a property of a ERL NG ok 7ES
fellow subsidiary = 20,000
Fellow subsidiaries and properties BELNENEZ =k ES
of the Group = 50,000
Controlling Shareholders, fellow ZIRACR - ARMB AR RA
subsidiaries and properties of the SBEM Y
Group = 30,000
Controlling Shareholders, fellow FERSIGER « AR E AR A
subsidiaries, properties of the ESEEk E S REN =N
Group and properties of a fellow k7S
subsidiary - 60,000
- 499,000
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Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F12A31B ILFEE

33. Related Party Transactions (Continued) 33. EARRXS ()
(b) Apart from the transactions and balances disclosed (b) RERA - BB Rk &b 381 B i
elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group BRI 5 M EEERIN - AN B 3
had the following material transactions with FHEARZWMT « (£)

related parties during the year: (Continued)

Notes: (Continued) Mt : (4&)

(v)  Other transactions with related parties: (Continued) (v) HEREETHNEMRS @ (8)
Guarantees provided for interest-bearing bank loans A BF2E T 5T 8 IR1T B A FE
of other related party HRATIELR
Group Z'KE El

2014 2013

20144 20134F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFIT AREFTT

Suchuang LPG #HelBRIER = 21,000
On 20 February 2010, the Group guaranteed the R20106F2H208 - AEE R &
interest-bearing bank loans for Suchuang LPG for AR BIRE RV ET BIRTTE 4R
two years, free of charge, which were renewed on T FEER - HR2012F3A15

15 March 2012 and repaid on 15 March 2014, HE&ERKR2014F3 A15BER ©

(c) Outstanding balances with related parties: (c) ERBAERHRERER -

Details of the Group’s balances with other related 7N 5= B BE H A0 BRI 5 IO R AS R Y

parties at the end of the year are disclosed in note FIERBENI S mAM 23 -

23 to the financial statements.

(d) Compensation of key management personnel of d) XEENHFEETEEASHRM
the Group

2014 2013

20145 20134

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ETTT ARETT

Basic salaries and other benefits BEARG S NEHAMIEF] 1,606 209

Pension scheme contributions RIKSEHEE R 37 27
Total compensation paid to key ENEEEERE A SR

management personnel “azn 1,643 236
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33. Related Party Transactions (Continued)

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in

note 8 to the financial statements.

The related party transactions in respect of items
(b)(ii)(2), (b)(i)(3) and (b)(iv) above also constitute
continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As Kunlun Suchuang
Gas, Kunlun Suchuang Usage, Suchuang LPG and
Suzhou Shunchuang Pipeline are not connected
person according to the Listing Rules, the related party
transactions in respect of items (b)(i)(1), (b)(ii)(1) and (b)
(iii) do not constitute continuing connected transactions
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Directors confirmed that the related party
transactions in respect of item (b)(i)(2) above is an one-
off transaction and terminated already.

Notes to Financial Statements
WIS RR M T

Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F12A31B IEFEE

33. AELRS ()

ERESHFIOFBEEINTBERE
MozEs °

EXXb)(I1)(2) + (b)(1)(3) K (b)(iv) TH A 38
HRGIERETHRAF14ATRED
FEBERS RELMRA - E&EK
BIRR - BEm&alN A - SEIR(ER K
FMIBEIE BIFFAEAL - Bt © (b)
(i)(1) ~ (b)(ii)(1) K (b)(iii) BRIBEE T R 5
AER TR BAE14AT T R FFE

EEmARLEXb)HQ)ENBEST RS A
—RERS - WRBHKIE -
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FATS SRR RE

Year ended 31 December 2014

H=201

412 A31B IEFE

34. Loans to Directors

4. A FEENER

Name of related party

Relationship with the Group

A= 5 LK £ [ B R

Suchuang Group Company controlled by Mr. Su Aping
-3 IESE] BB ST AR R A R

Shanghai Shenxin Company controlled by Mr. Su Aping
tEmE RS a2t Y VNC]

Suchuang LPG Company controlled by Mr. Su Aping
#HElBIER FRPAF e A A B

Suzhou Shunchuang Pipeline

&k

MIBEIE 8

Lihe Energy

A4k
I/Zl\ﬁb/ﬁ

Suchuang International

3

BB E

Suzhou Suling Automobile Service

&

Dangerous Goods Transportation

&

R ZE T EE R S

B omE B

Shanghai Putai Trading Industrial Co., Ltd.

(“Shanghai Putai”)

EEBRESEXARAR ([ LEBK])

Taicang Suchuang Property Development Co., Ltd.

X

(“Taicang Property”)

RHAIFHERZEARLIR ([KAEFHE])

Shanghai Suchuang Transportation Co., Ltd.

LagalREESARAR ([#8

(“Suchuang Transportation”)

&% )

Taicang Sunan Petroleum Co., Ltd.

(“Taicang Sunan Petroleum”)

AetmamERAR ([KE#mAM])

Shanghai Chuanping Gas Co., Ltd. (“Chuanping Gas”)

EBIFERARRR ([IFER]D)

Shanghai Suchuang Industrial Co., Ltd.

i

Suzhou Suchuang Chemical Petroleum Co., Ltd.

&

Shanghai Suchuang Puxi Gas Appliance Co., Ltd.

(“Suchuang Industrial”)

BERAIEXRERAR ([HAIEX])

(“Suchuang Chemical Petroleum”)

MEalit TR mBRAR ([FEMLTAMH])

(“Puxi Gas”)

LPagelRARRAGRAR (DRAKE])
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Company controlled by Mr.
R[]~ S A FE I Y R A

Company controlled by Mr.
R[]~ S A R Y R )

Company controlled by Mr.
R~ S A R Y R E)

Company controlled by Mr.
R B - S8 A2 il O X B)

Company controlled by Mr.
RS a 2 Y VNC]

Company controlled by Mr.
FR B S A PR Il R R A
Company controlled by Mr.
BB S S A PRI A R
Company controlled by Mr.
R B S S8 AR il ) X A)
Company controlled by Mr.
BB S SR A PRI R R

Company controlled by Mr.
ok o] 7 55 AR 2R T B 1 ]

Company controlled by Mr.
AR B0 S S A PRI 2 R
Company controlled by Mr.
R B - S5 AR il O X R)
Company controlled by Mr.
RIS A PRI A X )

Su Aping

Su Aping

Su Aping

Su Aping

Su Aping

Su Aping

Su Aping

Su Aping

Su Aping

Su Aping

Su Aping

Su Aping

Su Aping



Notes to Financial Statements
WIS RR M T

Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F12A31B IEFEE

34. Loans to Directors (Continued) . HTESNER (&)
Loans to directors (including directors and companies RIEFBRREDIE22EM K11578
controlled by the directors), disclosed pursuant to BIWEBENL TES (PHEEEREST
Section 78 of Schedule 11 to the Hong Kong Companies HEATE]) WERAOT :

Ordinance (Cap. 622), are as follows:

Group VNN
Maximum
amount
As at  outstanding As at
31 December during the 1 January Security
2014 year 2014 held
R2014%F FRKRER 20144
Name e 12H31H =% 1TA1E #HE0ER
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTRE ARETRT
Suchuang Group ErAIEE = 194,126 194,126 None
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Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F12A31B ILFEE

34. Loans to Directors (Continued) . HTESNER (&)
Maximum
amount
As at  outstanding As at
31 December during the 1 January Security
2013 year 2013 held
R2013%F FRKREER 20135
Name e 12H31H Reae 1TA1E #HEER
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTRE ARETRT
Shanghai Shenxin tiBRE - 292,880 169,071 None f&
Suchuang LPG AR R - 126,627 126,627 Note Ffi#E
Suzhou Shunchuang
Pipeline w N B A - 14,793 = None #E
Suchuang Group #El = E 194,126 194,126 45,626 None £
Lihe Energy PAk=N: - 14,470 14,400 None #&
Shanghai Putai EEEA = 21,246 21,246 None &
Taicang Property ANEFHE = 27,749 25,377 None f&
Suchuang International  #R&|EI & - 24,352 22,281 None #&
Suzhou Suling BRI #R 2
Automobile Service AR - 14,000 13,790 None f&
Suchuang Transportation &R &l:E ) - 7,812 7,812 None #&
Taicang Sunan Petroleum K& & £ H - 89,059 30,598 None #&
Chuanping Gas JNIFRESR - 3,543 3,270 None #&
Suchuang Industrial EREIE 2 = 26,000 16,000 None #&
Suchuang Chemical
Petroleum FREME T A - 12,750 4,300 None &
Dangerous Goods
Transportation &k & = 4,952 1,396 None &
Puxi Gas HIRR - 1,969 1,969 None £
194,126 876,328 503,763
The loans granted to directors are interest-free and have BRTEENERRLEREETEN
no fixed terms of repayment. B
Note: Details of security held for Suchuang LPG are Mzt © BRER(LRIFA B RF BN I5R
disclosed in note 33(b)(v) to the financial statements. KHFE3I3(b) (V)RR
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35. Financial Instruments by Category

The table below is an analysis of the carrying amounts

of financial instruments by category as at the end of the

Notes to Financial Statements
WIS RR M T

Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F12A31B IEFEE

35. RERETWERm T A
TEIREXRRERESHNERIAD
BREEDIT -

year:
Group REE
2014 2013
2014%F 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTIT ARBTIT
Financial assets THEE
Loans and receivables BRKkEWRIE
Trade and bills receivables FEUNE ZER & E ik 56,475 57,466
Financial assets included in FTATERFRIE « Be REAME
prepayments, deposits and other WHRIENEREE
receivables 7,054 5,429
Amounts due from other related parties J& U E b B 3E 75 5008 173 196,086
Pledged deposits EHEAFR 4,513 6,463
Cash and cash equivalents HE MBS EEY 125,377 69,808
193,592 335,252
Financial liabilities THEE
Financial liabilities measured at REBHEAATTENSREAE
amortised cost
Trade payables FET 8 5 8RR 42,405 24,913
Financial liabilities included in other 5t A E {th fE {718 K fE5+ & A
payables and accruals ol S=Ni 63,042 59,529
Amount due to an other related party — FE{S E A B8E 5 5B 946 -
Amount due to the holding company  JEfHZERL A AIFIE - BERISE
Interest-bearing bank loans TRIRITER 120,000 499,000
226,393 616,877
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B TR P 5
Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F 128318 LFE

35.

36.

Financial Instruments by Category 5. B8 sWEeERmIA (&)
(Continued)
Company AN
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARETIT
Financial assets PHEE
Loans and receivables ERKEWRIE
Amount due from a subsidiary NGRS 310,774 33,488
Financial liabilities ZHEEE
Financial liabilities measured at RBHERITTENESHEE
amortised cost
Amount due to the holding company A% A B FRIA = 53,435

Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of
Financial Instruments

Fair value hierarchy

The fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction in the principal (or most advantageous)
market at the measurement date under current
market conditions regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. As at 31 December 2014, the
carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
approximated to their fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash
and cash equivalents, pledged deposits, trade and
bills receivables, trade and bills payables, financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals, amounts due from/to other
related parties, amount due to the holding company,
and amounts due to the Controlling Shareholders
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to
the short term maturities of these instruments as at 31
December 2014.
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36. Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of

Financial Instruments (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
The following methods and assumptions were used to

estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of interest-
bearing bank loans have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using rates currently
available for instruments with similar terms, credit
risk and remaining maturities. The fair values of the
non-current portion of interest-bearing bank loans at
the end of the reporting period approximated to their
corresponding carrying amounts.

The Company did not have any financial assets
measured at fair value at the end of the year.

Liabilities measured at fair value:
The Group and the Company did not have any financial
liabilities measured at fair value at the end of the year.

Assets for which fair values are disclosed:
The Group and the Company did not have any financial
assets for which fair values are disclosed at the end of

the year.

Notes to Financial Statements
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Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F12A31B IEFEE

36. ERITEAANFERATFEER

(%)

AFEER (&)
SREERABODTEUZTARE
BRHHEMZH THAZHEBA
BR - MIESRIBERIE - T AR
FEFDRA T ERER

FHERITERE IR AP ERB
RAGR - FEERR LRERDIH A EE
H T ARG A BRI RTIRBHARKE
MBI AFE © 5T ERITERIEA
HER O R E BARN A FEEELRRER
HEMEE

RER  ARAYEEMZQFEFE

BAFEGTENRE
RER » AEBRARRRLELFIRA
FEFENEZRAE -

EREFELNFENEE -

RER » REBRARR AL EREA ER
EXBELATFENSREE -
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Year ended 31 December 2014
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36. Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of
Financial Instruments (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

36.

ERMTAQAFERQFEER
(#4&)
DFEER (&)

Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed: EXRELFENEE -
Group REE
Fair value measurement using
significant observable inputs
(Level 2)
RAERABEMSRAETEN
RNFE (FZ4)
2014 2013
2014% 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥EFTTT AREFTT
Interest-bearing bank loans FrEIRITER
(non-current portion) (FERNEREB 1D 120,000 -

The Company did not have financial liabilities for
which fair values are disclosed at the end of the year.

37. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments mainly
include cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposits,
trade and bills receivables, and trade and bills payables,
which arise directly from its operations. The Group has
other financial assets and liabilities such as interest-
bearing bank borrowings, amounts due from and to
the Controlling Shareholders, amounts due from and to
related parties, and deposits and other receivables, and
other payables and accruals. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations.
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37. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies (Continued)

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group does not
hold or issue derivative financial instruments either for
hedging or for trading purposes. The board reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of the risks which
are summarised below:

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to market risk for changes in
interest rates relates primarily to its interest-bearing
bank loans and other borrowings. The Group does not
use derivative financial instruments to hedge its interest
rate risk. With all other variables held constant, the
Group’s profit after tax and equity are affected through
the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Group

Notes to Financial Statements
WIS RR M T

Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F12A31B IEFEE

7. MEEREENERRIGE (&)

AEESRTAMPMNEZRRSF
REE - INERR - EERRMREE
TREKR - AEBEYEREGHBEITELSY
HAAEERENITEERTA - EFS
REFRZTEESHRROBER - A
AR

PIESEN
AEEFEHHNTHSENEREHREBEE
HHGBRITERMEMEKERE o &
SEWEMNBITESR T A HHEF X
kg o EATA M Al # R R FTED
BAT  BFREEEEANFEME RN
SEMBR TG M MR EERK B R E
I

rEHE

Increase/(decrease) on profit
after tax and equity

B 258 12 i 1) e AR A3 (OB

2014 2013

20144 20134

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT ARBFT

Increase by 25 basis points Hhn25 (B E B (300) (497)
Decrease by 25 basis points B D25 (B2 300 497

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s businesses are located in Mainland China
and the majority of transactions are conducted in
RMB. Most of the Group’s assets and liabilities are
denominated in RMB. The Group has not hedged its
foreign exchange rate risk.

SNEE R B
AEBOEBMRHEAM - BUKER D
RBEAARBHETT - KED A KB H
BEMBBETUAREIIE - AEEL
S H NS TE 3L R o
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Year ended 31 December 2014
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37. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)
Foreign currency risk (Continued)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the year to a reasonably possible change in
the US$ exchange rate, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit after tax and equity.

7. MEEREENERRIGE (&)

MEzmb (&)
TRINEMBEMAZERZER T
RERT - REBERBL G ) N R
FRE X TTIE RS I 7] 5K B ) B
=

Group NEH
Increase/(decrease) on profit
after tax and equity
B 756 12 i 1) e AR o0~ OB
2014 2013
20145 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETF T ARETFT
RMB/US$ AR® Xx
Strengthened 5% FHE5% - 1,198
Weakened 5% BZ1E5% - (1,257)
Credit risk EEmbE

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that
all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are
subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis;
therefore, the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, the
composition of which is disclosed in note 35, arises
from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these

instruments.

Concentrations of credit risk exist when changes in
economic, industrial or geographic factors similarly
affect groups of counterparties whose aggregate credit
exposure is significant in relation to the Group's total
credit exposure.
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37. Financial Risk Management Objectives and 37. B RAREENBEFERBER (&)
Policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk MENE &

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using AEBRAREERSESTE AR
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers REECHEBRNER -t TEEZEH
the maturity of both its financial instruments and SRTAENEREE (MNEWKE FERR

financial assets (e.g., trade and bills receivables) and NERE) M HBE UMK EEEEERN

projected cash flows from operations. BHRESRE -

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between AEBNBEESEAFERRTER &£
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of BeREMHEREE R 2 RgHTE -
bank loans. In addition, banking facilities have been AN AREBE B EITIRITRE NER=
put in place for contingency purposes. ZF e

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities RER  REBIRERT AR
as at the end of the year, based on the contractual cHmBaERHEMENT

undiscounted payments, was as follows:

Group REE

Within ~ Within 2 to  More than

On demand 1 year 5 years 5 years Total
RBX 1R 2E5FR SELE wst

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETL AREBTT ARBTT ARETRL

At 31 December 2014 R2014%12A31H

Trade payables ERE SRR = 42,405 = - 42,405
Financial liabilities AT A fh fERTRIE K
included in other EstEReeRARE
payables and accruals 62,802 - - - 62,802
Amount due to an other  FERfEMEER FB
related party 946 - - - 946
Interest-bearing bank loans 3t 24R{TE - 8,646 141,118 = 149,764
63,748 51,051 141,118 - 255,917

Financial guarantee issued: % MBI ER
Maximum amount BREREHE
guaranteed (Note 33) (FfEE33)
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Notes to Financial Statements

B TR P 5
Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F 128318 LFE

37. Financial Risk Management Objectives and
Policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

37. BEABREENE BERBEX (&)

RBEZERE (&)

Within ~ Within 2 to  More than

On demand 1 year 5 years 5 years Total
BEX 1R 2E5%R SENE )
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTRT ARETRT ARETR
At 31 December 2013 R2013%12A318
Trade payables BN E SRR = 24,913 = = 24,913
Financial liabilities ST AR A ERTFIE R
included in other EERNeRAE
payables and accruals 57,926 - - - 57,926
Amount due to the JERERR A B3R IR
holding company 33,435 - - - 33,435
Interest-bearing bank HERITER
loans - 510,478 - - 510,478
91,361 535,391 - - 626,752
Financial guarantee issued: % MBI ER
Maximum amount BEEREHE
guaranteed (Note 33) (H&E33) - 64,000 - - 64,000

The amount included above for financial guarantee
contracts is the maximum amount the Group could be
required to settle under the arrangement for the full
guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by the
counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations at
the end of the year, the Group considers that it is more
likely than not that no amount will be payable under
the arrangement.
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Notes to Financial Statements
WIS RR M T

Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F12A31B IEFEE

37. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

37. BEABREENE BERBEX (&)

RBEZERE (&)

Company VNN
Within -~ Within2to ~ More than
On demand 1 year 5 years 5 years Total
eSS 1R 285%A SEE #st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTE ARETRE ARETT ARETT ARE™TR
At 31 December 2013  R2013F12A318
Amount due to the ERTEIRA RIFIE
holding company 33,435 - - - 33,435
Capital management EeEE

The primary objective of the Group’s capital
management is to ensure that it maintains a strong
credit rating and a healthy capital ratio in order to

support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the

year.

The Group monitors capital using a net debt to equity
ratio, which is net debt divided by capital. The Group’s
net debt consists of interest-bearing bank loans, less
cash and cash equivalents. Capital represents total

equity.

AEEEEENTIERERMARES
FRYnEEFARBRNER L X -

PAST RS EL 7 M R (B E &AL -

AEEEEEEANRE  WREZES
MEBHEIELARE - BEFNARE
AR AEBEFERBEN TRRS
BB MRREREE AR BEITHND
RER BELEEERHBE  BR

SRR M B -

AEBRAFEGHERE REE?

& FHEB LR R BERF RN
B - REBRFEBIZE BRT
mAEERREEEYAE -

He= N7
FEZS o
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Notes to Financial Statements

B TR P 5
Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F 128318 LFE

37. Financial Risk Management Objectives and

Policies (Continued)

Capital management (Continued)

At the end of the year, the Group’s strategy was to
maintain the net debt to equity ratio at a healthy capital
level in order to support its businesses. The principal
strategies adopted by the Group include, but are not
limited to, reviewing future cash flow requirements and
the ability to meet debt repayment schedules when they
fall due, maintaining a reasonable level of available
banking facilities and adjusting investment plans and
financing plans, if necessary, to ensure that the Group
has a reasonable level of capital to support its business.
The net debt to equity ratios at the end of the years are

7. MEEREENERRIGE (&)

E£EE (#)

RER  AEERBER BB L E
I REFRIBRANEAKTE - AH
HEREE - AEEMRANERRR
B (BARN) I RKRAERER
KA R B 75 B B B 4k B B SR EVBE 7
RRBIRITHREEFTNEIEKF - XA
EEREFEIR@METE (MARE) - K
BARAEEAFHSEKFNERIFHFH
EHEE - RERNFEHH LR
LI

as follows:

Group KEE
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T ARET T
Interest-bearing bank loans sHEIBITER 120,000 499,000
Less: Cash and cash equivalents W BERIBEEEY (125,377) (69,808)
Net debt FETS (5,377) 429,192
Total equity BT 461,270 271,610
Net debt to equity ratio FEBH SR N/A TiE 158%
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39.

Events after the Reporting Period

The shares of the Company have been listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 11 March 2015.

38.

Notes to Financial Statements
WIS RR M T

Year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F12A31B IEFEE

HREHEEE
RABRMDEM2015F31TBRER
BHMAERSERDE ([BRXAT]) =
IRETT ©

Nominal Nominal
Number value of value
of shares HK$0.01 each RMB
SRMEE
S d= 0.01%7T HEBEARK
Issued and fully paid: ERTRHE :
At 31 December 2014 2014128318 12,399,256 123,993 97,758
Capitalization issue of BEARETRG
shares 587,600,744 5,876,007 -
Issuance of new shares 120153 H11H
on 11 March 2015 BEITHAR (D 200,000,000 2,000,000 1,587,540
At 11 March 2015 #2015%3 A11H 800,000,000 8,000,000 1,685,298

In connection with the Company’s Global Offering on
the Stock Exchange, on 11 March 2015, 200,000,000
ordinary shares of HKO0.01 each were issued at a
subscription price of HK$2.08 per share for a total cash
consideration, before expenses, of HK$416,000,000
(approximately RMB330,208,320). Dealings in these
shares on the Stock Exchange commenced on 11 March
2015.

Approval of the Financial Statements
The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 27 March 2015.

39.

RARREBMIFETHEREEM
= R2015F3A11B EHRREE
& [%2.087% 7T # 17200,000,0008% & i%
0.01BTTHE @R BEHEENRE R
BRBFISZ) A416,000,0008 7T (K AR
330,208,3207T) ° ZERMH 201553
A1 BEEBIMETEE -

B 7S SR R BV L
R RELEEZMN2015F3 H278
HEAE M R B A o
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Financial Summary

P HE

RESULTS &
For the year ended 31 December
BE12A3181LFE
2014 2013 2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT ARBFT ARBFT
Revenue ON 785,592 663,663 522,980 474,224
Cost of sales HEMR (595,566) (463,588) (371,874) (348,207)
Gross profit E 190,026 200,075 151,106 126,017
Other income and gains H A R o 9,959 4,521 2,795 5,915
Selling and distribution costs ~ $4%& &2 #a A (4,788) (2,796) (2,794) (2,277)
Administrative expenses THFEX (27,183) (20,923) (8,581) (7,086)
Other expenses Hihix (1) (305) (997) (42)
Finance costs RPN (19,023) (42,267) (52,231) (42,069)
Share of profits and losses of: DMEATARIER :
A joint venture —RaghE (3) (34)
Associates NG| 4,948 3,285 4,879 (282)
Profit before tax BB AR R 153,938 141,590 94,174 80,142
Income tax expense RSB X (37,578) (35,098) (23,163) (20,718)
Profit for the year/period FEBEET 116,360 106,492 71,011 59,424
Profit for the year/period UTEFELEE
attributable to: HiRRR
Owners of the parent SYNSIEZSUN 116,360 106,703 71,025 59,424
Non-controlling interests FEIERR R R - 211 (14) -
116,360 106,492 71,011 59,424
ASSET, LIABILITIES AND BE - 88K
TOTAL EQUITY A
Total assets BERS 967,274 1,130,203 1,440,253 1,291,270
Total liabilities BREH 506,004 858,593 1,054,403 981,114
Total equity TR 461,270 271,610 385,850 310,156
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